
CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocitynv.gov 
Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov 

1751  College Avenue Elko, Nevada 89801 · (775) 777-7160 Fax (775) 777-7219 

P U B L I C  M E E T I N G  N O T I C E  

The City of Elko Planning Commission will meet in a regular session on Tuesday, March 6, 2018  
in the Council Chambers at Elko City Hall, 1 75  l  College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and beginning 
at 5 :30 P.M.,  P.S.T. 

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Commission. In accordance with 
NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda were posted on the City of Elko Website at 
http://www.elkocitynv.gov/, the State of Nevada's Public Notice Website at https://notice.nv.gov, 
and in the following locations: 

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE- 57 1  Idaho Street, Street, Elko, NV 89801 
Date/Time Posted: February 28, 20 18  2 : 1 0  p.m. 

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY - 720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801 
Date/Time Posted: February 28, 2018  2:05 p.m. 

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT- 1448 Silver Street, Elko NV 89801 
Date/Time Posted: February 28, 20 18  2: 1 5  p.m. 

ELKO CITY HALL- 1 7 5 1  College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 
Date/Time Posted: February 28, 20 18  2:00 p.m. 

Posted by: Shelb Archuleta Plannin Technician 

Name Title U ignature 

The public may contact Shelby Archuleta by phone at (775) 777-7160 or by email at 
sarchuleta@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The 
agenda and supporting material is also available at Elko City Hall, 1 7 5 1  College Avenue, Elko, 
NV. 

Dated this 281h day of February, 20 18 .  

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify the City of Elko Planning Department, 1 75 1  College Avenue, Elko, 
Nevada, 89801 or by calling (775) 777-7160. 



CITY OF ELKO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, MARCH 6, 2018 

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Agenda for this meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission has been properly posted 
for this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements. 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241 ,  this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion 
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda 
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as 
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

February 6, 20 18  -  Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

I. NEW BUSINESS 

A. PUBLIC HEARING 

1 .  Review, consideration, and possible action of Conditional Use Permit No. 2- 18 ,  filed 
by Boys & Girls Club of Elko, Inc., which would allow for the expansion of an 
existing building within a PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the southeast comer of the intersection 
of Country Club Drive and Convention Dive. (APN 001-560-092) 

2. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 2 - 18 ,  filed by Boys & 

Girls Club of Elko for a reduction of the required rear yard setback for the principle 
structure from 49' 5" to 7' ,  in conjunction with a Conditional Use Permit to allow 
for expansion of an existing building within a PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning 
District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the southeast comer of the intersection 
of Country Club Drive and Convention Dive. (APN 001-560-092) 



3.  Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution 1 - 1 8 ,  containing 
amendments to the Atlas Map #8 of the City of Elko Master Plan, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Planning Commission reviewed and initiated the amendment to the City of Elko 
Master Plan at its February 6, 20 18  meeting. 

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

1 .  Review, consideration, and possible action and possible approval of Final Plat No. 4- 
18 ,  filed by Jordanelle Third Mortgage, LLC, for the development of a subdivision 
entitled Tower Hill Unit 1 involving the proposed division of approximately 33.804 
acres divided into 23 lots and 2 remainder parcels for residential development within 
the Rl (Single Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally southeast of the terminus of Stitzel Road. 
(001-920-079). 

2. Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City 
Zoning Ordinance, specifically Sections 3 -2- 1 1  IBP, IC Industrial Districts, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

3.  Election of officers, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Pursuant to Section 3-4-3 A. of the City Code, the Planning Commission shall elect a 
Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary in January every year. Staff 
overlooked the requirement for the agendas in January and February. 

II. REPORTS 

A. Summary of City Council Actions. 

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions. 

C. Professional articles, publications, etc. 

1 .  Zoning Bulletin 

D. Preliminary agendas for Planning Commission meetings. 

E. Elko County Agendas and Minutes. 

F. Planning Commission evaluation. General discussion pertaining to motions, findings, and 
other items related to meeting procedures. 

G. Staff. 



COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241 ,  this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. 
ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 
�h� 
g����r 



CITY OF ELKO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2018 

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
1751 COLLEGE A VENUE, ELKO, NEV ADA 

CALL TO ORDER 

Special Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

David Freistroffer 
Jeff Dailing 
Kevin Hodor 
Stefan Beck (excused himself at 
Tera Hooiman (arrived at 5:32 p.m.) 

Aaron Martinez 
John Anderson 

ROLL CALL 

Present: 

David Freistroffer, Vice-Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Com 
to order at 5 :30 p.m. 

City Staff: 

Excused: 

co 

***Motion: Approve the minutes from January 4, 2018 as presented. 

Moved by Kevin Hodor, Seconded by Stefan Beck. 

"Motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

I. NEW BUSINESS 

February 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 24 



A. PUBLIC HEARING 

1 .  Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone 
No. 10- 17 ,  filed by Surebrec Holdings, LLC, for a change in zoning from AG 
(General Agricultural) to IC (Industrial Commercial), approximately 62.03 acres of 
property, to allow for future development, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

Departm t recommended approval. He 
he legal description. The original legal 

as provided in the packet is the revised, 
l as presented. 

recommended approval as presented by staff. He also 
mdin , which were articulated into the Planning Department's 
ad into the record, along with the recommended conditions. 

re mendation to City Council to adopt a resolution, which would 
one No. 10-17 subject to the conditions listed in the City of Elko 

ary 26, 2018, listed as follows: 

Luke Fitzgerald, 207 Brookwood Drive, explained that he w 
annexed into the City and zone the parcel Industrial Com 

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, went over the City of 
Staff recommended that this item be conditionally 
of Elko Staff Report. 

Jeremy Draper, Development Manager, said the Develop 
approval of this application. They provi 
packet. Mr. Draper explained that as this 1 

Component of the Master Plan. The propos 
Component, so he recommended approval. 

The subject property is located generally northeast of the · 
Street and Delaware Avenue. (APN 006-lOC-006) 

Seo 

Bob Thibault, Civil En 
explained that he did 
description had so 
correct legal description, 

***Motion: Fo 

conditionally appro 
Staff Report dated J 

Engineering Department: 
1. The parcel described by metes and bounds does not match the parcel of record. 

Please revise the legal description to reference the map instead of the metes and 
bounds description. The revision is required prior to Council consideration of the 
application. 

Planning Department: 
1 .  Council approval of Annexation 3-17 is required prior to action taken on this 

application. 

February 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of24 



2. The applicant enters into an agreement with the City relinquishing or identifying 
any residual rights that may exist under the agreement between the State of Nevada 
and the City. 

n No. 2- filed by Surebrec Holdings, LLC, 
of property located northeast of the 

venue, and matters related thereto. 

ere reques mg annexation into the City. He also mentioned 
of the Rezone application regarding relinquishing 

e discussions with the State on exactly what those 
plete answers by the end of the week. 

City of Elko Staff Report dated January 26, 2018 .  Staff 
roval of the annexation to be forwarded to the City Council with 

taff Report. She then went through the Planning Department 

righ 

2. 

Ms. Laughlin 
recommended con 
the conditions listed 
conditions. 

Commissioner Hodur's findings were that the proposed zone district was in conformance 
with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use Component. The proposed zone district is 
compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component and is consistent with the 
existing transportation infrastructure. The proposed zone district is consistent with the 
City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The Proposed zone district is in conformance with 
City Code 3-2-4(B), (C), and (D). The proposed zone district is in rmance with Section 
3-2-11, IC-Industrial Commercial Districts. The property is Jar u h to meet the 
development standards specified in Section 3-2-11 of Elko C' . The proposed zone 
district is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17. The pro istrict in consistent 
with surrounding land uses. The topography of the are is r the proposed 
commercial and light industrial land uses. Develop d zone district 
will not adversely impact natural systems, or pub · 
wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a 

Mr. Draper wanted to elaborate on the water line easements. When the City acquired the 
easements for the lines, they were under an agreement with the State. As part of that agreement, 
the City pays the State yearly, based on the length of the easements. The Utility Department is 
working with the State to revise the agreement, remove the easements from the agreement, and 
reduce the yearly payment. The City also has some offers for connections to the water line, 
which will stay with the State at this time. Mr. Fitzgerald has agreed to relinquish his rights to 
the agreement the City has with the State, which goes with the successor of the property. The 
Development Department has reviewed the application and recommended approval of the 

February 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of24 



and recommended approval as presented. 

presented by staff. He called attention to the thirteen 
record. He suggested the Planning Commission revise 

as been evaluated in consideration of NRS.268.663 subsection 
evaluation that was completed. 

asked how long it would take to find out on the AT&T easement, and 
et an answer out of AT&T. 

Mr. 
findings, 
Finding No. 
3 ,  which has to 

annexation. He wanted to go over a few things in regards to the Transportation Component of the 
Master Plan. Delaware Street will serve as a County Roadway. Since it is being annexed into the 
City, there will be an additional 30 feet that will need to be dedicated, so there will be a full 
width roadway at least through Aster Street. Statice Street is interesting. There is a 62-foot wide 
easement across three parcels, which has allowed Statice Street to be developed as it is. North of 
the property line, on Mr. Fitzgerald's property, there is a 20-foot easement over a 24-inch water 
line. In discussions with the Utilities Department, as that is going to be adjacent to the roadway, 
they felt it best to have the 20-foot easement converted to right-of-way over the waterline to 
where Statice Street moves away from the property line. The reason for that is to provide access 
to the water line in the event that it has a break, so the City would not croaching onto 
private property in order to make a repair and the City would have c rol over it. There 
would be a 20-foot utility easement over a portion of line, and w work with the developer 
to ensure there would be no encroachment on to the easemen · not allowed on 
easements, but due to the size of the line, the City would hey are well away 
from it. Mr. Draper said he would be petitioning Counc · t e annexa · s approved, to 
allow him to pursue converting the easement for Stat' Street to right-of-wa there will be 
an 82-foot right-of-way. The comer property is be· elope by Kenworth, 
discussion with them about dedicating that right- f- the and they see 
that. Sewer is stubbed on Ruby Vista Drive, but it is too to t into to con nue it as a 
gravity main. The City is evaluating the options of boring neath 1-80 and connecting to the 
line on Union Pacific, or doing a small i' · tion. We are wo : with the Utility Department 
on that, and will continue to work with th er. The thir way is Ruby Vista. 
When the two adjacent parcels were annex ation was that they 
dedicate the Ruby Vista right-of-way to the oe ave right-of-way from Youth 
Center Road down along 18 'th just a smal already have a preliminary 
design for that, and now . d to work nt to have that dedicated to the 
City of Elko. He the 

Commissioner Jeff 
how hard it would be 

Mr. Draper said it would take 30 to 90 Days. 

Mr. Wilkinson explained that that information would not be required before property 
development. The annexation will be in ordinance form, and he thought it was good that that was 
addressed. It's a little different, because typically the conditions should be what is needed to 
annex the property. This one is a little different, because AT&T doesn't have that well marked. 
It's not a condition that has to be satisfied to annex the property. Mr. Wilkinson mentioned that 

February 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of24 



the Planning Commission might want to add a 14th finding that references NRS 268 .610 through 
268.670 inclusive, which is a catchall. 

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an ordinance, which 
conditionally approves Annexation No. 2-17 subject to the conditions in the City of Elko 
Staff Report dated January 26, 2018, listed as follows: 

Planning Department: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Development Department: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

uishing or identifying 
the State of Nevada 

offer of 

one disignation for the property 
ity of Elko Master Plan. 

edication · r right-of-way for Delaware 
· ive, within 45 days of acceptance of the 

er shall work with City on the alignment 
· or dedication. 

ro rty may be encumbered by an existing 
t indicate the location of this easement 

erty o r shall contact AT&T, verify the location of 
vide documentation of that location to the City. This 

/or concurrent with property development. 

Utility Deulftment: 
� 

1. 
• Fl 

existing waterline easements and replaces the easements with 

Commissioner Hodur's findings to support his recommendation was the annexation is 
consistent with the City's Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The proposed zoning 
of IC - Industrial Commercial would ensure conformance with the land use designation as 
shown in the Master Plan. The annexation is consistent with the City's Transportation 
Component of the Master Plan. Annexation of the property provides an immediate accrual 
to the tax base for the City. Annexation of the property does provide the opportunity for 
continued Light Industrial and Commercial land uses along Ruby Vista Drive, a Minor 
Arterial and Statice Street, an Industrial Collector ensuring the highest and best uses of the 

February 6, 20 1 8  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of24 



y on the north side of Silver Street, between 
ilver Street, APN 001-691-007). 

# 

ained that the property is currently zoned Light 
ange so they could add another building, and open it up to 
't have under the current zone. They have the Vape Shop that 

to get it changed. 

2. Review, consid 
N o . 1 1 - 1 7 ,  
IC (Indu 

A. PUBLIC HEARING 

Ped 

proposed roadways. The Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, 
Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential 
Report dated November 2012, identifies the area as having potential for annexation. The 
area proposed for annexation is not localized or isolated. The area proposed for annexation 
promotes development of future transportation and utility corridors, thus promoting 
future growth opportunities for the City. Annexation of the area will not have any 
immediate or negative impact on City resources. The area is located within the existing 
5400 water zone and can be served from existing infrastructure. Other, required, utilities, 
such as sewer, power, and gas will be installed at developer expense to facilitate 
development of the property. The topography of the area is wells for the proposed 
commercial and light industrial land uses. Development of the er will result in a 
positive economic impact to the community. Annexation and opment of the property 
will not adversely influence the local government structur nty nor the City. The 
proposed annexation satisfies considerations and/or co ce s ident as minimum 
factors for consideration under NRS 268.646. The a · o has bee luated in 
consideration of NRS 268.663 Section 3. The anne oder NRS 
268.610 through 268.670, inclusive. 

City of Elko Staff Report dated January 30, 2017 .  Staff issued 
Modified Vapors a te orary business license after the rezone application was received, based 
on the final approval of this rezone. Staff recommended conditional approval, subject to the 
conditions listed in the Staff Report. 

Mr. Draper said the Development Department recommended approval. 

Mr. Thibault explained, like the other rezone, this application had an error in the legal 
description, so he requested that be corrected. The corrected legal description was included in the 
packet. He recommended approval with no other conditions. 

February 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of24 



Mr. Holmes had no comments. 

Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval as presented by staff. He called attention to the ten 
findings in the Staff Report, which should be sited into the record. 

Vice-Chairman Freistroffer said since this was next to other IC, it sounded like a good idea and a 
good use for that property. 

Mr. Wilkinson said staff would like to see many of the industrial uses in the downtown area 
convert to more appropriate type uses. 

Commissioner Dalling thought it was a good fit. 

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to the City Co n 
would approve Rezone No. 11-17. 

district is in 
tricts. The proposed zone 

he p ed zone district in consistent 
the area · well suited for the proposed 
opment under the proposed zone district 

· federal lands such as waterways, 
ger to human health and safety. 

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

3.  on, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone 
file Swire Coca-Cola, USA, for a change in zoning from AG 

· ltural) to LI (Light Industrial), approximately 3.00 acres of property, 
to allow f e continued use of a beverage distribution center, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the north side of West Idaho Street, 
approximately 2,500 feet east of 1-80 Exit 298. 

Kyle Potokar, with Big D Construction representing Swire Coca-Cola, USA, explained that 
Swire wished to rezone the property to allow for an expansion of the existing warehouse, in 
coordination with the incoming water line extension coming along Sheep Creek Trail under 1-80. 

February 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of24 



Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated January 1 1 ,  20 18 .  Staff 
recommended conditional approval with the conditions listed in the Staff Report. 

Mr. Draper said the Development Department recommended approval of the Rezone. He wanted 
to expand on a few things. Idaho Street, in front of this property, is NDOT right-of-way. Any 
improvements along the Idaho Street frontage will need to be coordinated with NDOT. This 
property is outside of the current Wellhead Protection zone, but it should be noted that the City 
does have plans to put in a well off the frontage road, approximately 4,500 feet from this 
property. That could bring this property into the 20-year capture zone. As development occurs on 
the property that should be noted, and we should be aware of the condi s i n  the Wellhead 
Protection Plan. Development Department had one condition that st in the Staff Report. 

to action taken on this 

ions for annexation 3-17 are met and the 1. 

Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval as present 

Mr. Thibault recommended approval. 

Planning Department: 

Mr. Holmes recommended approval. 

propose 
is consisten 
consistent with 

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Co 

conditionally approve Rezone No., 12-17, subject to the 
Report dated January 11 ,  2018, listed lows: 

rt his recommendation was the proposed zone 
of Elko Master Plan Land Use Component. The 

with the Master Plan Transportation Component and 
ransportation infrastructure. The proposed zone district is 
o Wellhead Protection Plan. The Proposed zone district is in 

e 3-2-4(B), (C), and (D). The proposed zone district is in 
3-2-12(A), LI, GI Industrial Districts. The proposed zone district 

is in conformance wi City Code 3-2-17. The proposed zone district in consistent with 
surrounding land uses. The topography of the area is well suited for the proposed light 
industrial land uses. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely 
impact natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, 
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety. 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Stefan Beck. 

"Motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

February 6, 20 1 8  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of24 



B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

3.  Review and consideration of Annexation No. 3 - 17  filed by Swire Coca-Cola, USA, 
consisting of approximately 3.00 acres of property located on the north side of West 
Idaho Street, approximately 2,500 feet east from 1-80 Exit 298, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Mr. Potokar explained that Swire wished to annex the parcel in coordination with the rezone for 
the future water line and the building expansion. 

· ng the water line from 
construction of the 

this parcel. The 
this parcel. 

port. 

rtment Memo. He recommended 
listed in the Staff Report. 

Mr. 

oval as presented by staff. He also recommended that the first 
m the Utility Department be struck. It is informational only. The 

ion would be appropriate as a condition for annexation. He 
finding 1 3  and adding a finding 14, which would be the same as the 

previous annexation t was considered. 

Mr. Potokar explained that in the Summary Section of the Development Department Memo, it 
says that the owner wishes to subdivide the property, and that is not the owner's intent. 

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an Ordinance, which 

would conditionally approve Annexation No. 3-17 subject to the conditions listed in the 
City of Elko Staff Report dated January 31, 2018, listed as follows: 

Development Department: 

February 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 9 of24 



1. The property owners shall receive approval for a zone designation for the property 
to be consistent with the Land Use designation in the City of Elko Master Plan. 

Utility Department: 

1. The applicant is required to install dry sewer on their property frontages, as 
typically required when sewer does not yet exist in the location. 

2. The property owner will extend the water main on their f ntages and connect to 
the City water no later than 90 days after service is availa .. heir property line. 

L 
ays of connecting to the 

4. No cross connection between the existing 
period of time required to abandon the on ·. 

3. The onsite ground water well will be abandoned wi 
City water system. 

was the ann tion is 
P an. The proposed zoning 

and use designation shown in 
e City's Transportation 

an immediate accrual 
opportunity for 

onsistent with the goals, 
evelopment Feasibility, Land 

structu , Transportation Infrastructure, 
er 2012. The alignment for water service to 

been re-evaluated. Extension of water 
derpa rs significantly less expensive than 

er rs property now factors into fulfilling that 
exation is not localized or isolated. The proposed 

ransportation objectives of the City. Annexation of 
ediate or negative impact on City resources. The 

area can istin 5400 water zone. Extension of water infrastructure is 
required an for including certain actions taken by the City Council 
identified in tli r, required, utilities will be installed at developer expense to 
facilitate develop property. The topography of the area is well suited for the 
proposed commerci light industrial land uses. Expanded used on the property will 
result in a positive e omic impact to the community. Annexation and development of the 
property will not adversely influence the local government structure of the County nor the 
City. The proposed annexation satisfies the considerations and/or concerns identified as 
minimum factors for consideration under NRS 268.646. The annexation has been evaluated 
in consideration of NRS 268.663 Section 3. The annexation has been evaluated under NRS 
268.610 through 268.670, inclusive. 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Stefan Beck. 

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

February 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 10 of24 



The Planning Commission took a break at 7:00pm. 

Commissioner Stefan Beck excused himself from the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 

A. PUBLIC HEARING 

again. 

d conditions that were listed, but he had nothing further to add. 

approval as presented by staff. 

The subject property is located generally on the 
of Cattle Drive and Mountain City Highway. 

· application, he had also 
ity Highway and 

nt. This also falls within the 
with NDOT on getting 

and conn tivity with exit 298. This 
re. When the property was first developed, 

y studies and a traffic study. The 
were rev ed by the City and DOT. He 

ut asked that Condition No. 1 1  be removed. 

4. Review, consideration, and possible action of Conditional Use Permit No. 1 - 1 8 ,  filed 
by Autumn Colors, LLC, which would allow for the development of duplex 
townhomes within a CT (Commercial Transitional) Zoni · strict, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Mr. Wilkinson re 

Mr. 

Jon Bailey, 780 W. Silver Street, explained that this 
Development. They made a small change to the to 

Motion: Conditional pprove Conditional Use Permit No. 1-18 subject to the conditions 
in the City of Elko Staff Report dated February 1, 2018, removing condition 11 from the 
Development Department, listed as follows: 

Planning Department Conditions: 
1 .  The CUP 1-18 be approved for the building layout as shown in the provided site plan 

Exhibit A. 
2. All landscaping shall include a combination of trees and shrubs. Landscaping shall 

be installed and not obstruct the view of oncoming traffic at the intersections. 

February 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 11  of24 



3. Owner or developer is to provide such maintenance and care as is required to obtain 
the effect intended by the original landscape plan for the development. 

4. CUP 1-18 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days of approval. 
5. Connectivity from Sagecrest Drive to Cattle Drive pedestrian access shall be 

provided for. 

shall be offset and approved by NDOT. 

le with surrounding areas. Stucco and 
or of the structures. 

fenc nting access directly to State Route 225. The 
amenities such as a tot lot. 

· tained in an acceptable manner at all times. 

to be 30 feet. 

8. 

6. 

7. 

ly with the 2012 International Fire Code chapter 5 section 
d to within 150 ft. of all portions of the building(s). 

ight be required to meet the requirements of the 2012 IFC 
Chapter 5 Sec n 503.2.1 for this complex. 

3. Fire Department access shall meet the minimum dimensions as listed in the 2012 IFC 
section 503.2.1 

4. Dead end access roads shall have an approved method for turning around a fire 
apparatus in compliance with the 2012 International Fire Code chapter 5, section 
503.2.4, 503.2.5 and appendix D. 

5. Fire apparatus access roads shall meet the requirements of the 2012 International 
Fire Code chapter 5, and City of Elko Fire Department requirements for turning 
radius, approach and departure angles, and grade. 

Development Department; 
Included in Memorandum dated January 8, 2018 from Community Development Manager 

1 .  The permit is granted to the applicant, Autumn Colors, LLC. 
2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applica · ly to the specific use 

and to the specific property for which it is issu w ver, the Planning 
Commission may approve the transfer of the con use permit to another 
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit f itional use, signifying 
that all zoning and site development require t onnection with the 
permit have been satisfied, the conditi thereafter be 
transferable and shall run with the Ian 
conditions imposed by the permit, as w 
zoning district, shall be the responsibihty o 

3 .  The applicant applies for and receives Final 
preliminary plat 5-12. 

4. Development of the property is 
or requirements stipulated in th 

5. The NDOT right-of-way is to be 
submittal and approval. NDOT ap 
include features, reate a "fr 
Route 225. 

February 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 12 of24 



6. Fire department access roads shall comply with the 2012 International Fire Code 
sections 503.2.1 and Appendix D section 0105.1 through 0105.3 for buildings in 
excess of thirty feet in height. 

7. Signage shall be provided in compliance with the 2012 IFC appendix D 103.6 
Building signage shall be provided and meet the requirements of the City of Elko 
Fire Department and the 2012 IFC. 

8. Projects that exceed 100 or 200 dwelling units shall comply with a the appropriate 
section of the 2012 International Fire Code Appendix D sections 0106.1 and 0106.2 

9. One- or two family residential developments shall comply with the 2012 IFC 
appendix D 107. 

10. Fire flow shall be determined by the City of Elko Fire De · and listed on 
submitted plans. 

1 1 .  Fire Department access, method of turn around, an 
and maintained as required by the 2012 IFC, for h 
development plan shall be provided and appr 

Moved by Kevin 

*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0) 

TITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

on, and possible action and possible approval of Final Plat No. 2- 
Colors, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled 

tates, Phase 5 involving the proposed division of approximately 
ed into 41  lots for residential development within the R (Single 

Family an. ultiple Family Residential) and CT (Commercial Transitional) Zoning 
Districts, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the northeast corner of the intersection 
of Cattle Drive and Mountain City Highway (OOl-OlF-316) .  

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated January 22, 2018 .  She recommended 
approval with the conditions listed in the Staff Report. 

February 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 13 of24 



Mr. Draper went through the Development Department Memo dated January 23, 20 18 .  He then 
went over his recommended conditions listed in the Development Memo. He added that he had 
an additional condition on a supplemental memo that had been handed out, which was 
"Additional right-of-way may be required for Cattle Drive based on a review of the intersection 
design by NDOT. NDOT approval is required and any additional right-of-way shall be show on 
the plat prior to council consideration. He explained that NDOT wanted to have Cattle Drive 
perpendicular to Mountain City Highway. NDOT is working with their Carson City office and 
should have an answer back by the end of the week, so we can provide that recommendation to 
Mr. Bailey. He stated that Condition No. 1 the date should be June 29, 20 19 .  

Mr. Thibault had nothing to add and recommended approval. 

Mr. Holmes recommended approval. 

approval of a modification of standards is required p 
and gutter, sanitary sewer and water supply not be· 
Development Department conditions were revise s 
Department Staff Report. He encouraged the Commissi 
the Development Department in the memo. He also recom 
stating, "As recommended by NDOT". ed Mr. Draper 
NDOT. 

Mr. Draper stated it was September 20, 201 

Mr. Wilkinson suggeste 
finding is based on t 

ition 14  from the Development 

e legend, so they could strike that condition if they 
WIS 

endation to City Council to conditional approve Final Plat 
ons in the City of Elko Staff Report dated January 22, 2018, 

Develo ment De art · ent: 
(See Memorandum from Development Manager Jeremy Draper dated January 23, 2018) 

1 .  The Applicant shall complete all required subdivision improvements within two (2) 
years of the date of approval. Approval of the Final plat shall expire if the final plat 
is not recorded within two (2) years of the date on which the sub-divider recorded 
the previous Final Plat, pursuant to NRS 278.360. This plat shall be recorded prior 
to June 29, 2019. The applicant may request an extension of time as provided for 
under provisions of City Code. 

2. The final plat is approved for 20 townhome lots and 21 single-family residential lots. 
3.  The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter. 

February 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 14 of 24 



to City 

, not requiring the 
urbs for the frontage 

f the Planning 

letter dated September 

n of sta ards, not requiring the 
tures required in Elko City Code 3-3-43 

· ·ty, along the frontage of Mountain City 
mdings the Planning Commission. Finding is 

ing utility locations. 
or improvements on Mountain City Highway (SR 225). 

nal plat for NDOT approval prior to City Council 

jur to reflect 2018 prior to City Council consideration. 

may be required for Cattle Drive based on a review of the 

DOT. NDOT approval is required and any additional right 

on the plat prior to council consideration. 

4. Final approval for civil improvement plans 
5. State approval of the subdivision. 

6. A Performance Agreement with regard to the dedication of public improvements 

shall be presented with the final plat for approval. The developer shall enter into the 
Performance Agreement within 30 days of approval of the final plat by City 
Council. 

7. The vicinity map on page 1 of the plat needs to be adjusted to identify the location of 

the subdivision prior to City Council consideration. 
8. A drainage easement over Common Area A near Cattle Drive shall be shown on the 

final plat prior to City Council consideration. 
9. Lot 531 shall have access restricted to Autumn Colors D 

to the final plat prior to City Council consideration. 
10 .  Lot 532 and 537 shall have access restricted to Sno 

to the final plat prior to City Council considerati o 
1 1 .  The developer shall clarify the depth of lots 5 

depth of 79.00', prior to City Council cons' 

12 .  Provide a bearing for lots 504, 505, 512, 
Council consideration. 

1 3 .  The plat shall identify the location of the City 
consideration. 

14 .  The council should consider a 
installation of curb and gutter a 
of Mountain City Highway (SR 2 

Commission, and as recommended 

2047 

Public works Departm'.ent; 
1. All public improvements per City code at time of development. 

Utilities Department: 
1. Civil Plans for water and sewer will be reviewed at time of submittal and offer any 

feedback in the form of redline comments. 

Planning Department; 
1. All revisions to map must be completed prior to City Council consideration for 

February 6, 20 1 8  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 15 of 24 



approval. 
2. Common Area A needs to be landscaped and properly cared for and maintained in 

a manner that is acceptable to the City of Elko. 

3. Existing cluster of post office boxes for County residents needs to be addressed with 
in the Final Plat. Location, easement, distance to intersection, and traffic conditions 
all should be addressed 

ision is in 
-3-5 with less 

3-3-8 

econded by Tera Hooiman. 

Commissioner Hodur's findings to support his recommendation was the subdivision is in 
conformance with the Land Use and Transportation Components e Master Plan. 
Modifications to development standards have been approved wi 

agreement shown as File 666547 on record with the Elko Co 
on the Development Agreement, the subdivision is in conf 
Establishment of Zoning Districts, 3-2-5 (E) Single-Fa · 
Districts, 3-2-9 CT - Commercial Transitional Zoni 
conformance with 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parkin 
than 2 years since the last final plat was record 
Information required for Final Plat Submission. 
3-20 General Provisions for Subdivision Design. The 
unsuitable for use by reason of floodi , concentrated 
soil or rock formation, extreme topog 
which are likely to prove harmful to th 
community or the future property owne nformance with 3-3-21 
Street Location and Arrangement, 3-3-22 lock Design, 3-3-24 Lot 
Planning as modified by t velopment � Easement Planning, 3-3-26 
Street Naming, 3-3-27 ting Design ndards, -3-40 Responsibility for 
improvements, 3-3- Plans, 3-3- Construction and Inspection, and 3-3-43 
Required Improv ivider shall into a performance agreement to 
address the conditions reeme · to Install Improvements. The sub- 
divider shal as stipulated in the performance agreement 
and 3-3- . Counci approval is required for a modification of 

ation of Standards for curb and gutter, sanitary 
ed in SR 225. The subdivision is in conformance 

e Final Plat is in conformance with the Preliminary 
e required prior to City Council consideration of the 

*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0) 

A. PUBLIC HEARING 

5 .  Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone 
No. 1 - 1 8 ,  filed by The City of Elko, for a change in zoning from R (Single-Family 
and Multiple-Family Residential) to PQP (Public, Quasi-Public), approximately 

February 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 16 of 24 



1 . 3 1 4  acres of property, to allow for incorporation into the Elko City Parks, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the northwest corner of the intersection 
of College A venue and Golf Course Road ( 1401  College Ave, APN 001-200-002). 

NO ACTION WAS TAKEN ON THIS ITEM 

6. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone 
No. 2 - 1 8 ,  filed by Jason B. Land, on behalf of Blaine Bra b, for a change in 
zoning from R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Resid 1) t RO (Residential 
Office), approximately 0.086 acres of property, to a a professional office, 
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE A 

The subject property is located generally o 
approximately 50 feet east of 9th Street 

Jason Land, 1526 Sustacha Drive, Lamoille, NV: sat 

Residential to Residential Office. 

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko 
conditional approval with the conditions 1 

Mr. Draper wanted to go back to the Land U 
reviewed the application th termined that 
6, which is to encourage 
pattern of developme 
development. The 
Commercial. One of the e is to provide limited Commercial 

t of the Land Use Designation in the Master 
the Deve opment Department condition listed in the Staff 

ments and recommended approval. 

Mr. Wilkinson reco d approval as presented by staff. He wanted to reinforce a few 
observations. Under t edevelopment Plan repurposing buildings and eliminating blight is 
important. Under the Mixed Use issue, the designation of the Master Plan, the Downtown Mixed 
Use is envisioned as an intense use. With the zoning and the surrounding land uses, this type of 
possibility finds a happy medium between the two and supports the Redevelopment Plan. 

Commissioner Dalling asked the applicant what he was planning to do with the building. 

Mr. Land explained that he was an advisor with Edward Jones and he had an office on N. 5th 

Street. He explained that he would rather have his firm pay him, than he pay his landlord. 

February 6, 2 0 1 8  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 17 of24 



Leanne Hill, 45 1  Valley Bend Drive, Spring Creek, NV, explained that she owned a rental at 9 1 6  
Court Street. She thought anything that's improved upon the property would be beneficial to 
them. 

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a resolution, which 
conditionally approves Rezone No. 2-18 subject to the conditions listed in the City of Elko 
Staff Report dated January 18, 2018, listed as follows: 

rezone 

igning the resolution 
Planning Department: 

I .  All conditions for the rezone are satisfied prior to the Ma 
to rezone the property. 

not required 
uses in the immediate 

wntown Mixed Use. The 
and Use Component 

sportation Component 
nd limitations of intensity 

existing transportation 
ing the operty and structure conforms 
is consistent with the City of Elko 

· roperty and allowed uses under the 
ells. The property does not conform to 

ve referenced non-conformance issues, the 
size, lot width and the interior side yard 

-18. Approval of the variance application is required 
e proposed rezone is not in conformance with 

variance for lot size and interior side setback will be 
required fo pplication. The property as developed is in conformance with 
City Code 3- ipal permitted use as a single-family residence. The applicant 
has committed t oval the existing garage to develop ADA compliant off-street 
parking to be locat e rear of the property and accessed from the alleyway if the 
property is issued a c ditional use permit to be developed as an office use. The parcel is 
not located within a esignated Special Flood Hazard Area. Development under the 
proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural systems, or public/federal lands such as 
waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or posed a danger to human health and 
safety. The proposed rezone is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Jeff Dailing. 

"Motion passed unanimously. (4-0) 

February 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 18 of24 



7. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 1 - 1 8 ,  filed by Jason B. 
Land, on behalf of Blaine Branscomb for a reduction of the required lot area from 
6,000 sq. ft. to 3,750 sq. ft., front lot width from 60 feet to 37.50 feet, and the 
required interior side yard setback from 5 l /2 feet to O feet, in conjunction with a 
zone change from R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) to RO 
(Residential Office), and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the south side of Court Street, 
approximately 50 feet east of 9th Street (910 Court Street, 001-281-002).  

e same variance 
ot believe this will result 

resent y staff. He recommended a few revisions 
on 5 should read, "The property does not 

ad, "The property is not in conformance with Section . . .  "  
·  ·  son recommended including the first finding from 

is application confirmed that this property was going to be 

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated Jan 
conditional approval with the conditions listed in the Staff Re 

the 

if the applicant was granted a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 
use of an office on the operty, the applicant would have to provide parking for that office. By 
providing the parking, the applicant would have to provide it where the garage is located. The 
garage is not included in the variance because the applicant stated that he was going to demolish 
it. If the applicant left it as a principle permitted use as a Single Family Residence, then he would 
need to return to the Planning Department and apply for an additional variance for the garage. 

properties in the same zoning district. A 
additional properties, but there is potentia 
requirements due to lot size and location to 
in material damage or prejudice to the other 
recommended approval wit conditions in 

Vice-Chairman Freistroffer said one of the conditions for variance was the openings. He asked if 
there were several windows on that side of the house. 

Mr. Land said no. 

February 6, 20 1 8  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 19 of 24 



Ms. Laughlin pointed out that there was one window that would have to be boarded up, which is 
on the wall parallel to Court Street. 

Mr. Land said that window was boarded from the inside. He added that he not intended to have a 
window there, and asked if he was allowed to have a window there, or not. 

Ms. Laughlin stated that he was not allowed to have a window at that location. 

off street parking 

cipal structure to 
educed to 3,750 

2' to <5' requires 1 hour 

ished. 
lffil.»tiipletion within eighteen (18) months. 

Building Department; 
1. Walls, roof < 5' from proper 

code table R302.1 
2. Projections (overhangs) not all 

underside per R302.1 
3. Openings (windows etc.) < 3' fr 

max of wall area allowed per R302. 

Development Department; 
1 .  A  variance is granted for the side yard setback 

be reduced to 0', the lot width is reduced to 3 
sf. 

2. The garage is removed from the proper 
,p-· 

***Motion: Conditionally approve Variance No. 1-18 subject t o t  
of Elko Staff Report dated January 18, 2018, listed as follows: 

Commissio gs to support its recommendation are the proposed variance 
does not appe e Master Plan's goals and policies of the Land Use 
Component. Stri nee with the Master Plan under Section 3-2-21 is not required 
and the proposed z rict is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate 
vicinity. Residential ice is not a corresponding district of Downtown Mixed use. The 
proposed zone district meets several of the Objectives 2 and 4 of the Land Use Component 
of the Master Plan. The proposed variance is consistent with the Transportation 
Component of the Master Plan. The proposed zone district, intensity of use and limitation 
of intensity of use will not create any significant cumulative issues on the existing 
transportation system. The proposed variance and repurposing the property and structure 
conforms to the Redevelopment Plan. The proposed variance is consistent with City of Elko 
Wellhead Protection Plan. The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the 
proposed district do not present a hazard to City Wells. The property does not conform to 
Section 3-2-4 of City Code. Approval of the variance application is required to bring the 

February 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 20 of24 



property into conformance. The proposed variance is not in conformance with Section 3-2- 
S(R) Residential Office, Approval of the variance application is required to bring the 
property into conformance. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood 
Hazard Area. It does not appear that granting of the variance will result in material 
damage or prejudice to other properties in the vicinity, nor will granting of the variance be 
detrimental to the interest, health, safety and general welfare of the public. Granting of the 
variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the zoning ordinance. 
Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources. The proposed variance is 
consistent with surrounding land uses. The special circumstances sited in the application 
are related to the existing conditions of the residential use and the erty as developed 
does not conform to current zone. 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Tera Hooiman. 

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIO 

1 .  

Ms. Laughlin went over the 2017  Annual· 

***Motion: Approve t 
presented, and forw 

*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0) 

on, a possible action to initiate an amendment to the City of 
ecifically The Proposed Future Land Use Atlas Map 8, and 

eto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Ms. Laughlin said th just did an Atlas Map 8 revision, but they made some errors and over 
looked a few properti at should have been included in the last amendment. These properties 
are up for discussion. he parcels known as the Girl Scout House, Masonic Lodge, VFW Hall, 
Old Police Department parcel, Elko Clinic, and the Surgical Center are all shown on the Land 
Use Atlas as Residential. Staff is proposing that those be Public. The reason they took no action 
on Rezone No 1 - 1 8  was that staff would like it to be in conformance with the Master Plan. 
Parcels that are south of the Peace Park, which is the current location of the State offices, and 
they are shown as medium density residential. Staff proposed General Commercial for those 
parcels. South of Cattle Drive, above 1-80 at Exit 298, staff is proposing above the Cattle Drive 
right-of-way to remain Industrial Business Park, and below that to be Commercial. It is all 
shown as Industrial Business Park right now, with the exception of a few Commercial areas. 

February 6, 20 1 8  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 21 of 24 



Consideration for west of the City properties at Exit 298. It was shown as low density residential 
and staff is proposing that as Industrial General to provided additional industrial area in case 
there are some further annexations. 

Mr. Wilkinson explained that staff would provide a detailed analysis on the proposed change 
along Cattle Drive to give the Commissioners the information on why staff is proposing that. He 
said they would need to evaluate and justify the change for showing some industrial outside of 
the expansion area, because he wasn't sure that the City could annex that area. He thought there 
were other targeted uses in that area that could interfere with that type of designation. 

it made sense to have the general industrial on edge of town, 
d of it centrally. 

that area are BLM property that the County applied for, for their 
e some conflict there with this type of designation. 

Ms. Laughlin continued with the consideration of the east Railroad 
Industrial. Right now, it has no classification. With the develop 
that there are areas that could have potential UP leases. The fi 

parcels to go to Public. 

Vice-Chairman Freistroffer asked what the Courthou 

Ms. Laughlin explained that if the Commis 
to see then they needed to speak up now. 

s every quarter, and last week in that 
evelopment in that area for a large industrial 

ovide a land use for this area, even though it is outside the 
a for annexation potential yet, so that will need to 

Vice-Chairman Freistro 
side. 

Mr. Draper said port 
A TV area. There coul 

Mr. Wilkinson said that might be appropriate. He thought they should change a portion of the 
Railroad property to Industrial Business Park. 

Vice-Chairman Freistroffer clarified that Mr. Wilkinson was proposing Industrial Business Park 
on the west side of Silver Street. 

Mr. Wilkinson said yeah. The City doesn't want any General Industrial down there. If there were 
a land use designation in the Master Plan that would discourage that, it would be better. He 

February 6, 20 1 8  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 22 of24 



suggested going out towards the east side and having a cut off. He suggested Industrial Business 
Park until Union Pacific, and Union Pacific east GI. 

Commissioner Hodur asked if they would be directing staff to bring it back as a resolution. 

Ms. Laughlin said it would be brought back as initiation again. 

***Motion: Direct staff to change the railroad parcel on the east side of town to Industrial 
Business Park west of Union Pacific Way and remain General Industrial east of Union 
Pacific Way, and bring the item back to the next meeting. 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Tera Hooiman. 

II. REPORTS 

A. Summary of City Council Actions. 

anning Commission to deny 
ouse on Winchester Drive. They 

they have 180 days to comply with 

he can meet the required parking for the 
whats can't meet. The City Council also set a limit 

apability of having 22. 

receives complaints almost daily as they continue to 
t to the City Council on that. 

iffer asked if the CUP would come back to the Planning 

ned that the parking waiver and/or the variance would come back to 
mission, if those applications come in. 

Mr. Wilkinson said the applicant had legal representation at the City Council that 
brought up issues with the Disabilities Law. He thought the Council was trying to find a 
happy medium, while understanding the Planning Commission's position and 
recommendation. They also had communication from the community and the courts on 
the need for a facility like that. A limit on occupancy wasn't presented to the Planning 
Commission or the City Council, but they decided that that might be an appropriate 
condition, providing that they convert their entire front yard area into parking. 

February 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 23 of24 



Ms. Laughlin explained that there were currently five residents at the facility, which have 
be issued there from Drug Court, and three of the five have vehicles plus the one staff 
member. 

Ms. Laughlin reported that the business impact statement was finalized for the 
application fee increase. Staff is now working on the revisions to the applications. City 
Council approved the Planning Commission 2018 Work Program. 

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions. 

C. Professional articles, publications, etc. 

1 .  Zoning Bulletin 

D. Preliminary agendas for Planning Commission 

E. Elko County Agendas and Minutes. 

F. Planning Commission evaluation. General di 
and other items related to meetin procedures. 

G. Staff. 

ADJOURNMEN 

Jeff Dailing, Secretary 

February 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 24 of24 































COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE

(EXISTING / PUBLIC)

C
O

N
V

E
N

T
I
O

N
 
D

R
I
V

E

(
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
/
 
P

U
B

L
I
C

)

N

FLAG VIEW ELEMENTRY SCHOOL

APN 001-560-042

NV DOT

APN 001-560-002

E
L

K
O

 
C

O
N

V
E

N
T

I
O

N
 
A

N
D

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S
 
A

U
T

H
O

R
I
T

Y

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
5

6
0

-
0

2
8

SITE DATASITE DATA

H
O

R
I
Z

:

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L

E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7
7
5
)
 
7
4
7
-
8
5
5
0
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7
7
5
)
 
7
4
7
-
8
5
5
9

5
4
0
5
 
M

A
E

 
A

N
N

E
 
A

V
E

.
 
R

E
N

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8
9
5
2
3

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

S
-
1

1
"
=

2
0
'

S
I
T

E
 
D

I
S

P
L

A
Y

 
M

A
P

B
R

J

B
R

J

N
I
B

C
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
S

U
M

M
I
T

 
E

N
G

 
2
0
1
2

N
:
\
D

W
G

S
\
M

I
S

C
\
C

o
l
i
n

\
E

l
k
o

_
B

o
y
s
n

G
i
r
l
s
C

l
u

b
\
B

G
C

l
u

b
_

b
a

s
e

_
R

E
V

_
E

N
T

R
Y

.
D

W
G

 
~

 
3

:
1

0
 
P

M
 
*
 
2

8
-
S

E
P

-
2

0
1

2

2

C
I
V

I
L

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

B
O

Y
S

 
&

 
G

I
R

L
S

 
C

L
U

B
 
P

L
A

Y
G

R
O

U
N

D

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A

8
1
7
3
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PRINCIPAL BUILDING BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF ELKO  (APN 001-560-092) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB EXPANSION 2,666.75 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 31%%D22'52" W 410.28 - PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%d07'48%%034 E 57.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%d07'48%%034 E 73.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 31%%d22'52%%034 W 361.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 58%%d37'00%%034 W 29.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%130

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%d

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%034

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%130

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%d

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%034

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 33%%d52'12%%034 W 108.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 55%%d47'24%%034 W 528.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28476668.36 E609628.41 PROPERTY CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28476610.96 E609628.54 CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28476302.48 E609440.38 CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28476318.10 E609414.77  PROPERTY CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE AREA PENDING ACCEPTANCE FROM NDOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ACCESSORY BUILDING  GYM  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSORY STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
19,954 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING - EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING - EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA (S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE AREA (ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE AREA (S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLOWABLE SITE COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTUAL SITE COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE PARKING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
46 STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
%

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.37 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
%

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE TABULATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA (S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE AREA (S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE AREA (ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING TABULATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTUAL SITE COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE PARKING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROSS S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 ACCESSIBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.30%

AutoCAD SHX Text
16,538 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PQP

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-560-092

AutoCAD SHX Text
25,552 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.9%

AutoCAD SHX Text
59,888.59 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
48 STANDARD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
100



EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING GYM

NEW BUILDING

ADDITION

DETACHED ACCESSORY

BUILDING

NEW  BUILDING

ADDITION

H
O

R
I
Z

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7
7
5
)
 
7
3
8
-
8
0
5
8
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7
7
5
)
 
7
3
8
-
8
2
6
7

1
1
5
0
 
L
A

M
O

I
L
L
E

 
H

W
Y

.
,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8
9
8
0
1

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

e
m

a
i
l
:
 
N

i
t
i
n

@
s
u

m
m

i
t
n

v
.
c
o

m

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

N
O

N
E

N
O

N
E

8
1

7
3

3

C
I
V

I
L

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

E
L

K
O

 
B

O
Y

S
 
&

 
G

I
R

L
S

 
C

L
U

B

S
O

U
T

H
 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

E
L

K
O

E
L

K
O

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A
N

I
T

I
N

 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
.
d
w

g

A
C

A
D

1
4

F
e

b
r
u

a
r
y
 
1

2
,
 
2

0
1

8

E
-
1

1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF FINISH FLOOR ELEV = 100'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL ELEV = 118'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL ELEV = 122'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF CMU WALL ELEV = 124'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF FINISH FLOOR ELEV = 100'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL ELEV = 124'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF CMU WALL ELEV = 132'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL ELEV = 110'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSULATED METAL PANELS (POLAR WHITE COLOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMU WALL EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOTING STRUCTURE BELOW GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSULATED METAL PANELS (REGAL BLUE COLOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF FINISH FLOOR ELEV = 100'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF EVE ELEV = 110'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF ROOF ELEV = 112'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF GARAGE DOOR ELEV = 108'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOTING STRUCTURE BELOW GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL PANELS (COLOR TO MATCH BLDG)

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM





























Page 1 of 6 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE:     February 26, 2018 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: March 6, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  I. A. 2 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  Variance 2-18 

APPLICANT:    Boys & Girls Club of Elko 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Expansion of existing facility 

RELATED APPLICATIONS: Conditional Use Permit 2-18 

  

A Variance request to reduce: 

1. Rear yard setback from 49’-5” to 7’-0” 

  

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact and conditions. 

 

 

 

 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 



VAR 2-18 
Boys & Girls Club of Elko 

APN: 001-560-092 

 

  Page 2 of 6 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

PARCEL NUMBER:   APN 001-560-092 

 

PROPERTY SIZE: 1.375 acres 

 

EXISTING ZONING:   PQP –Public, Quasi, Public 

 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:  Public 

 

EXISTING LAND USE:   Developed as the current Boys & Girls Club facility 

 

 
NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 
 

• The property is surrounded by developed land to the north, south, and west. It is 
surrounded by properties zoned PQP, Public, Quasi-Public. 
 
PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 
 

• The property is currently developed. 
• The property has topography that is not always the easiest for development.  
• The property is of irregular size and therefore is not the easiest for compliance with 

development standards 
• The property is accessed from County Club Drive 
• The property is not in the flood zone. 

 
APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 
 

• City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component 
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 
• City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 
• City of Elko Code 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public District 
• City of Elko Code 3-2-21 Amendments 
• City of Elko Code 3-2-22 Variances 
• City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

• August 7, 2012, the applicant was approved for a Variance 7-12 reducing the rear yard 
setback from 34 feet to 26 feet 11 inches. This variance would supersede VAR 7-12 which 
was approved for a reduction in the rear setback requirement. 
 

• The existing gymnasium was approved as an accessory structure.  All accessory structures 
whether attached or detached, shall be located in accordance with location on the lot as 
approved by the Planning Commission. 

• The applicant has requested a lease agreement with the Nevada Department of 
Transportation for a long term lease of 30’ of the rear portion of the property.  This is a 



VAR 2-18 
Boys & Girls Club of Elko 

APN: 001-560-092 

 

  Page 3 of 6 

steep sloped area and not easily developable but would increase their useable area of their 
parcel.  The additional 30’ lease area was not taken into consideration in the review of the 
Variance application as setback requirements but reviewed as an area in which would 
allow for an additional buffer between the building and the adjacent property supporting 
the variance application for a reduction in the rear setback. They are currently still 
negotiating on the lease and it would not be considered part of their parcel. 

• The property is triangular shaped and brings difficulty in developing to the required 
development standards set forth in the PQP zoning district. 

• It appears their proposed expansion is over their existing sewer lateral. 
• The property is not located in the Redevelopment Area. 

 
MASTER PLAN 
 

Land Use 

 
1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Public. 
2. PQP- Public, Quasi-Public is listed as a corresponding zoning district for Public in the 

Master Plan Land Use.   
3. Master Plan states that Public land use designation is applied to community and public and 

quasi-public uses such as those associated with government, non-profit, and utilities. Uses 
of land must comply with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not 
frustrate, the Master Plan’s goals and policies. 

4. Objective 3: Strengthen, preserve, and promote the area around the City Park, City Hall, 
and Convention Center as the civic heart of the community. 

5. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide 
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, 
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.  

 
The variance is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component. 
 

Transportation 
 

1. The Master Plan identifies Country Club Drive as residential collector roadway. 
2. The site has pedestrian access along Country Club Drive as well as Convention Drive. 

Sidewalks are a necessary safety feature, particularly in residential neighborhoods where 
children walk to and from the facility.  

3. The existing facility meets the goals listed in the Master Plan Transportation document as 
Best Practice Objective 1; Provide a balanced transportation system that accommodates 
vehicle, bicycles, and pedestrians, while being sensitive to, and supporting the adjacent 
land uses. 

 
The variance is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component and existing 

transportation infrastructure 
 

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN 
 

• The property is located in the 5-year capture zone for City wells. Development will be 
required to conform to the Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 
 

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS 
 



VAR 2-18 
Boys & Girls Club of Elko 

APN: 001-560-092 

 

  Page 4 of 6 

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply 
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection. 

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall 
be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. 

 
The proposed development does not conform with this section of the code and therefore have 
applied for a variance for the rear yard setback requirement. Approval of the variance would be 
required to bring the development into conformance. 
 
SECTION 3-2-8 PQP PUBLIC, QUASI-PUBLIC DISTRICT 
 

1. The intent of the district is to accommodate public or quasi-public institutional uses. 
 
2. Section 3-2-8(D) The establishment, expansion or change of any use, including principal 

permitted uses, shall be governed by the conditional use permit procedure, as set forth in 
section 3-2-18 of this chapter.  

 
3. Section 3-2-8(C) The total ground floor area of all buildings shall not exceed thirty five 

percent (35%) of the net site area. Minimum setback from any street line is not less than 
one and one-half (1 ½) times the height of the principal building. Minimum setback from 
interior side and rear lot lines is not less than the height of the principal building, plus one 
additional foot for each five feet (5’) or part thereof that such building exceeds thirty five 
feet (35’) in the aggregate horizontal dimension of the wall generally parallel to such side 
or rear lot line. Building height shall conform with requirements contained within the city 
airport master plan.  

 
4. Development of the property is required to be in conformance with City cod and 

conditions for the CUP. It appears the property can be developed in conformance with the 
requirements stipulated in City code with the approval of a variance. 

 
The proposed development does not conform with the development standards of this section of 
code and therefore, the applicant has applied for a variance for the rear yard setback requirement. 
Approval of the variance would be required to bring the development into conformance. 
 
SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS 
 

• Conformance with this section is required. The current facility is in conformance 
 

SECTION 3-2-21 AMENDMENTS 
 

1. The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application. 
 
SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES 

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include: 
 

Application Requirements 
 
1. The variance application is in support of a non-conforming use. 
2. The existing use of the property has been in place as a legal nonconforming use. 



VAR 2-18 
Boys & Girls Club of Elko 

APN: 001-560-092 

 

  Page 5 of 6 

3. The variance process should not be utilized to provide a development (financial) 
advantage for a certain property.  The variance process is appropriate to allow a use of 
property consistent to similar types of uses. 

4. It does appear that granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or 
purpose of the Zoning Ordinance or effect a change in the land use. 

5. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other 
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and 
general welfare. 

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources. 
 
3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT 
 

1. The parcel is not located within a designated flood plain. 

FINDINGS 
 

1. The applicant has demonstrated the proposed hardship as developing a geometrically 
challenged parcel. In addition the Planning Commission has made this finding under a 
prior variance application. In an effort to minimize the issue the applicant is entering into 
a long term lease with a State agency abutting the property. 
 

2. The circumstance presents and exceptional difficulty in expansion of the facility to meet 
the needs of the community.   
 

3. The special circumstance does not apply generally to other PQP zoned properties within 
the vicinity. 
 

4. Granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other properties 
in the vicinity.  
 

5. Granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the zoning 
ordinance. 
 

6. Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources. 
 

7. The proposed variance is consistent with the Land Use component of the Master Plan. The 
setback standards for the PQP zone applied to existing parcels within the areas identified 
under Objective 3 complicate efforts in preserving and promoting the City Park, City Hall 
and Convention Center as the civic heart of the community. The Boys and Girls Club, 
Public schools and other civic uses support the effort.  

 
8. The proposed variance is consistent with the Transportation component of the Master 

Plan. The proposed zone district, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will 
not create any significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system.   

 
9. The proposed variance is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The 

proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed district do not present a 
hazard to City wells. 

 
10. The property does not conform to Section 3-2-4 of city code. Approval of the variance 

application is required to bring the property into conformance. 
 



VAR 2-18 
Boys & Girls Club of Elko 

APN: 001-560-092 

 

  Page 6 of 6 

11. The proposed variance is not in conformance with Section 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public. 
Approval of the variance application is required to bring the property into conformance. 

 
12. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area.  

 
13. It does not appear that granting of the variance will result in material damage or prejudice 

to other properties in the vicinity, nor will granting of the variance be detrimental to the 
interest, health, safety and general welfare of the public.  
 

14. The proposed variance is consistent with surrounding land uses.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends APPROVAL of VAR 2-18 subject to the findings and facts with the following 
conditions: 

Planning Department Conditions: 
 

1. Granting of the variance is conditioned upon approval of CUP 2-18 for the expansion of the 
property within a PQP – Public, Quasi-Public zoning district.  
 

2. Commencement within one year and completion within eighteen (18) months. 
 

3. Conformance to plans approved as a part of the variance. 
 

4. Subject to review in two (2) years if determined necessary by the planning commission. 
 
Building Department: 
 

1. Exterior walls less than ten feet (10’) from property line for this type of building use and 
construction type must comply with 2009 IBC with a 1 hour fire rating. 

 
Development Department: 
 

2. The Department recommends approval. 
 

 
 











COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE

(EXISTING / PUBLIC)

C
O

N
V

E
N

T
I
O

N
 
D

R
I
V

E

(
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
/
 
P

U
B

L
I
C

)

N

FLAG VIEW ELEMENTRY SCHOOL

APN 001-560-042

NV DOT

APN 001-560-002

E
L

K
O

 
C

O
N

V
E

N
T

I
O

N
 
A

N
D

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S
 
A

U
T

H
O

R
I
T

Y

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
5

6
0

-
0

2
8

SITE DATASITE DATA

H
O

R
I
Z

:

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L

E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7
7
5
)
 
7
4
7
-
8
5
5
0
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7
7
5
)
 
7
4
7
-
8
5
5
9

5
4
0
5
 
M

A
E

 
A

N
N

E
 
A

V
E

.
 
R

E
N

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8
9
5
2
3

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

S
-
1

1
"
=

2
0
'

S
I
T

E
 
D

I
S

P
L

A
Y

 
M

A
P

B
R

J

B
R

J

N
I
B

C
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
S

U
M

M
I
T

 
E

N
G

 
2
0
1
2

N
:
\
D

W
G

S
\
M

I
S

C
\
C

o
l
i
n

\
E

l
k
o

_
B

o
y
s
n

G
i
r
l
s
C

l
u

b
\
B

G
C

l
u

b
_

b
a

s
e

_
R

E
V

_
E

N
T

R
Y

.
D

W
G

 
~

 
3

:
1

0
 
P

M
 
*
 
2

8
-
S

E
P

-
2

0
1

2

2

C
I
V

I
L

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

B
O

Y
S

 
&

 
G

I
R

L
S

 
C

L
U

B
 
P

L
A

Y
G

R
O

U
N

D

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A

8
1
7
3
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PRINCIPAL BUILDING BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF ELKO  (APN 001-560-092) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB EXPANSION 2,666.75 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 31%%D22'52" W 410.28 - PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%d07'48%%034 E 57.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%d07'48%%034 E 73.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 31%%d22'52%%034 W 361.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 58%%d37'00%%034 W 29.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%130

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%d

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%034

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%130

AutoCAD SHX Text
=

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%d

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%034

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 33%%d52'12%%034 W 108.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 55%%d47'24%%034 W 528.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28476668.36 E609628.41 PROPERTY CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28476610.96 E609628.54 CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28476302.48 E609440.38 CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28476318.10 E609414.77  PROPERTY CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE AREA PENDING ACCEPTANCE FROM NDOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ACCESSORY BUILDING  GYM  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSORY STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
19,954 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING - EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING - EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA (S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE AREA (ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE AREA (S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLOWABLE SITE COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTUAL SITE COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE PARKING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
46 STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
%

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.37 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
%

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE TABULATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA (S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE AREA (S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE AREA (ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING TABULATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTUAL SITE COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE PARKING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROSS S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 ACCESSIBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.30%

AutoCAD SHX Text
16,538 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PQP

AutoCAD SHX Text
001-560-092

AutoCAD SHX Text
25,552 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.9%

AutoCAD SHX Text
59,888.59 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
48 STANDARD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
100



EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING GYM

NEW BUILDING

ADDITION

DETACHED ACCESSORY

BUILDING

NEW  BUILDING

ADDITION

H
O

R
I
Z

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7
7
5
)
 
7
3
8
-
8
0
5
8
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7
7
5
)
 
7
3
8
-
8
2
6
7

1
1
5
0
 
L
A

M
O

I
L
L
E

 
H

W
Y

.
,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8
9
8
0
1

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

e
m

a
i
l
:
 
N

i
t
i
n

@
s
u

m
m

i
t
n

v
.
c
o

m

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

N
O

N
E

N
O

N
E

8
1

7
3

3

C
I
V

I
L

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

E
L

K
O

 
B

O
Y

S
 
&

 
G

I
R

L
S

 
C

L
U

B

S
O

U
T

H
 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

E
L

K
O

E
L

K
O

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A
N

I
T

I
N

 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
.
d
w

g

A
C

A
D

1
4

F
e

b
r
u

a
r
y
 
1

2
,
 
2

0
1

8

E
-
1

1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF FINISH FLOOR ELEV = 100'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL ELEV = 118'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL ELEV = 122'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF CMU WALL ELEV = 124'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF FINISH FLOOR ELEV = 100'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL ELEV = 124'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF CMU WALL ELEV = 132'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL ELEV = 110'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSULATED METAL PANELS (POLAR WHITE COLOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMU WALL EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOTING STRUCTURE BELOW GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSULATED METAL PANELS (REGAL BLUE COLOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF FINISH FLOOR ELEV = 100'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF EVE ELEV = 110'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF ROOF ELEV = 112'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF GARAGE DOOR ELEV = 108'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOTING STRUCTURE BELOW GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL PANELS (COLOR TO MATCH BLDG)

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM























































Page 1 of 7 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE:     February 27, 2018 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: March 6, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  I.B.1 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  Final Plat 4-18 

APPLICANT:    Autumn Colors, LLC 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Tower Hills Subdivision Unit 1 at the end of 

Stitzel Road above Lamoille Highway and 

Powder House Road 

 

A Final Map for the division of approximately 7.920 acres into 23 lots for single family 

residential development within an R1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning District and two 

remaining lots. 

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

RECOMMEND to APPROVE this item subject to findings of fact and conditions. 

 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 



FINAL PLAT 4-18 
Tower Hills Subdivision Unit 1 

APN: 001-920-079 

 

  Page 2 of 7 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 
PARCEL NUMBERS:   001-920-079 

 

PARCEL SIZE: 7.920 acres for this Unit 1 of the subdivision; the 

entire subdivision is 33.804 acres. In Unit 1, 2.116 

acres are offered for dedication for street 

development 

       

EXISTING ZONING: (R1) Single Family Residential  

 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density 

 

EXISTING LAND USE:   Vacant 

 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

The property is surrounded by: 

• North: Residential / Developed  

• East: Elko County Property / Undeveloped 

• South: Agriculture (AG) / Undeveloped 

• West: Planned Commercial / Undeveloped 

 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is an undeveloped residential parcel. 

• This is the first phase of the Tower Hills Subdivision. 

• The parcel has challenging topography issues with a substantial grade difference  

towards Lamoille Highway. 

• Frontage of the Lamoille Highway would be under NDOT jurisdiction. 

• A portion of the property is located in the 5600 water zone and therefore cannot 

be served at this time by the City of Elko. 

 

MASTER PLAN, COORDINATING PLANS, and CITY CODE SECTIONS: 

 

Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans, and City Code Sections are: 

 

• City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component 

• City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component 

• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 

• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3 General Provisions 

• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts 

• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(B) Single-Family Residential District 

• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback And 

Height Schedule For Principal Buildings 



FINAL PLAT 4-18 
Tower Hills Subdivision Unit 1 

APN: 001-920-079 

 

  Page 3 of 7 

• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management  

• City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 

• City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3 Subdivisions 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

1. The City Council accepted the Preliminary Plat at its meeting on October 24, 2017. 

2. The subdivision is located on APN 001-920-079, shown as parcel 1 on map 666870 

recorded at the Elko County Recorder’s Office. 

3. The application is for a total of 23 lots. The proposed density is 3.96 units per acre. 

4. The total subdivided area is approximately 33.804 acres in size with 7.920 of that divided 

into 23 lots for Unit 1 with 2 remaining lots. 

5. Approximately 2.116 acres are offered for dedication for street development. 

6. The property is located off Lamoille Highway, NDOT jurisdiction and at the end of 

Stitzel Road. A portion of missing Stitzel Road is required as part of the development. 

7. Approvals prior to the October 24, 2017 approval of the Preliminary Plat for this 

subdivision have expired. 

 

MASTER PLAN: 

 

1. Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with 

review and approval of the Preliminary Plat. The Final Plat is in conformance with the 

Preliminary Plat. 

 

2. Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with 

review and approval of the Preliminary Plat. The Final Plat is in conformance with the 

Preliminary Plat. 

 

The subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation components of the 

Master Plan.  

 

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 

 

1. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.  

 

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN: 
 

1. The property lies outside any capture zone for the City of Elko. 

 

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

• Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions 

shall apply.  

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as 

“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as 

principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses 



FINAL PLAT 4-18 
Tower Hills Subdivision Unit 1 

APN: 001-920-079 

 

  Page 4 of 7 

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses 

permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of 

location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in 

this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council. 

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or 

conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified. 

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.  

1. Section 3-2-3(C) states that certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses 

permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of 

location, design, construction, operation and maintenance specified in Chapter 3 or 

imposed by the Planning Commission or City Council. 

2. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land 
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by 
reason of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock 
formation, extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any 
other features likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the 
community. The planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, 
shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The 
applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to the 
city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or 
withdraw the determination of unsuitability.” 
 

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-2-3. 

 

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS 

 

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 

in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply 

uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection. 

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall 

be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. 

 

It appears that the proposed development will meet the requirements of 3-2-4. 

 

SECTION 3-2-5(B) Residential Zoning Districts 

 

1. 3-2-5(B) Single Family Residential District. Lots must comply with principal permitted 

uses as listed in this section. 

 

Project is in conformance with 3-2-5(B) with the principal permitted uses as single family 

residential. 

 

SECTION 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning District 

 



FINAL PLAT 4-18 
Tower Hills Subdivision Unit 1 

APN: 001-920-079 

 

  Page 5 of 7 

1. Lot dimensions were approved with the Preliminary Plat. Modifications were made to the 
lot sizes as conditions of the Preliminary Plat. 

 

Project is in conformance with 3-2-5(G). 

 

SECTION 3-2-17 

 

1. As the property develops, conformance with 3-2-17 will be required.  

 

It appears the proposed development will meet the requirements of 3-2-17. 

 

SECTION 3-3-5 PRELIMINARY PLAT STAGE (STAGE II) 

 

F. Significance of Preliminary Approval, subject to the provisions of this section and NRS 

278.360, the final plat shall be recorded within 2 years of the date of recording of the 

previous final plat.   

 

SECTION 3-3-6 FINAL PLAT STAGE (STAGE III) 

 

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(1) – The Plat is in conformance with the zone  requirements.  

 

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(2) – The proposed final plat conforms closely to the 

preliminary plat.         

 

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(3) – The Title Sheet includes an affidavit for public utilities 

and no objections were received from public utilities upon notification for the Preliminary Plat.   

 

SECTION 3-3-8 INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR FINAL PLAT SUBMITTAL 

 

1. Compliance with this section is required. See Development Department memo dated 

February 26, 2018. 

 

SECTION 3-8 

 

1. The property is not located within a designated flood plain.  

 

FINDINGS 

 

1. The subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation components of 

the Master Plan.  

2. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-4-Establishment of Zoning Districts. 

3. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-5-B-Single-Family Zoning Districts. 

4. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading 

Regulations.  

5. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-6-Final Plat (Stage III). 



FINAL PLAT 4-18 
Tower Hills Subdivision Unit 1 

APN: 001-920-079 

 

  Page 6 of 7 

6. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-8-Information required for Final Plat 

Submission. 

7. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-20-General Provisions for Subdivision 

Design. 

a. The subdivision does not appear to be unsuitable for use by reason of flooding, 

concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme 

topography, erosion susceptibility or similar conditions which are likely to prove 

harmful to the health and safety and general welfare of the community or the 

future property owners.   

8. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-21-Street Location and Arrangement. 

9. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-22-Street Design.  

10. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-23-Block Design.  

11. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-24-Lot Planning as modified by the 

Development Agreement.  

12. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-25-Easement Planning. 

13. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-26-Street Naming.  

14. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-27-Street Lighting Design Standards. 

15. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-40-Responsibility for Improvements. 

16. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-41-Engineering Plans. 

17. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-42-Construction and Inspection.  

18. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-43-Required Improvements.  

19. The sub-divider shall enter into a performance agreement to address the conditions found 

in 3-3-44-Agreement to Install Improvements.  

20. The sub-divider shall provide a performance guarantee as stipulated in the performance 

agreement and 3-3-45-Performance Guarantee. 

21. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-8 Floodplain Management. 

22. The Final Plat is in conformance with the Preliminary Plat. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends approval of the subdivision based on the following conditions: 

 

Development Department 

(see Memorandum from Development Manager Jeremy Draper dated February 26, 2018) 

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in accordance with Section 3-3-

44 of city code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in accordance with Section 

3-3-44 of city code. In conformance with Section 3-3-44 of city code, the public 

improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two (2) years of the date 

of Final Plat approval by the City Council unless extended as stipulated in city code. The 

developer shall enter into the Performance Agreement within 30 days of approval of the 

final plat by City Council.  

2. The final plat is approved for 23 single family residential lots and 2 remainder lots.  

3. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter.  

4. State approval of the subdivision.  

5. Lot 122 shall have access restricted to Chukar Drive, a note shall be added to the final 

plat prior to City Council consideration.  



FINAL PLAT 4-18 
Tower Hills Subdivision Unit 1 

APN: 001-920-079 

 

  Page 7 of 7 

6. Update the dates in the jurats to reflect 2018 prior to City Council consideration.  
7. Conformance with Preliminary Plat conditions. 
8. Public improvements are required on the State Route 227 frontage or on the south 

southwest side of the State Route in accordance with NDOT approval. The extent, 
location and type of public improvements will be determined through the review and 
approval process for the civil improvement plans.   

9. Civil improvements are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code. 
10. Final approval for civil improvement plans.  
11. State approvals for the subdivision. 
12. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified 

engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required 

inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko. 

The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition Standard 

Specifications for Public Works. All Right –of-Way and utility improvements are to be 

certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.  

Engineering Department 

1. Verify the bearings on Lines L7 and L9. They do not match the bearing of the overall 

line. 

 

Planning Department 

1. Comply with all department conditions. 



C:\Users\claughlin\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\NPGLQVYN\Tower 
Hill Unit 1 FP 03012018 saw.docx 
Created by Jeremy Draper  

 

   CITY OF ELKO 
  DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

      1755 COLLEGE AVENUE 
ELKO, NEVADA  89801 

          (775)777-7210 
      (775)777-7219 FAX 

 
To:  Elko Planning Commission 
From: Jeremy Draper, PE, Development Manager 
RE: Final Subdivision Plat Review for Tower Hill-Unit 1 
Date: March 1, 2018 
 
The City Development Department has reviewed the final subdivision plat for 
conformance with the applicable Master Plan section, Coordinating Plans, and City 
Code Sections.   
 
Background Information 
 

 
 

1. The preliminary plat for Tower Hill was approved by the Council on October 24, 
2017.  

 



Page 2 of 11 

 
2. The subdivision is located on APN 001-920-079, shown as parcel 1 on map 

666870 recorded at the Elko County Recorder’s Office. A portion of missing 
roadway on Stitzel is required as part of the development of this parcel.  

3. The final plat is for 23 Single Family Residential Lots, plus 2 remainder lots.   
4. The subdivision is located along an extension of Stitzel Road.  
5. The property abuts Lamoille Highway,SR 227, a shared use path shall be 

constructed on the west side of Lamoille Highway in the following lengths, a 
separate memo has been provided to the developer outlining the required work. 

a. Unit 1: 303 LF 
b. Unit 2: 283 LF 
c. Unit 3: 442 LF 

6. The total subdivided area is 33.80 acres.  
7. The total subdivided area of Unit 1 is 7.92 Acres. 
8. The total area offered for dedication in Unit 1 is 2.12 Acres.  
9. The density of Unit 1 is 3.96 lots per acre.  
10. The property is zone R1-Single Family Residential.  
11. Approvals prior to the October 24, 2017 approval of the Preliminary Plat for this 

subdivision have expired.  
 

Master Plan 

Land Use Component 
 

• Land Use is shown as Medium Density Residential. Medium Density is identified 
as having a density of 5 - 8 units per acre or greater. The property is zoned R1 
which is a corresponding zoning district as identified in the Master Plan for a 
Medium Density Land Use.  The proposed density of this subdivision does 
conform to the subdivision.  

• The listed Goal of the Land Use component states “Promote orderly, sustainable 
growth and efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new 
development meets the needs of all residents and visitors”. 

• Corresponding zoning districts are 
o Residential-Medium Density 

� R-Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential 
� R1-Single-Family Residential  
� R2-Two-Family Residential 
� PUD-Planned Unit Development 
� RO-Residential Office 
� RB-Residential Business 
� RMH-2-Mobile Home Subdivision 
� RMH-3-Manufactured Home Subdivision 

• Applicable objectives of the Land Use Component are  
o Objective 1-Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs 

of a variety of lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.  



Page 3 of 11 

 
o Objective 8-Encourage new development that does not negatively impact 

County-wide natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, 
wetlands, drainages, floodplains, etc., or pose a danger to human health 
and safety.  

 
Transportation Component 
 

• State Route 227 is classified as a NDOT roadway and functions as a major 
arterial. The State Route 227 borders the property to the west. Direct access to 
the State Route is not shown. 

• Public improvements along State Route 227 shall be required in the form of the 
development of a shared use path on the west side of State Route 227 as 
approved by Elko City Council on September 23, 2014. The frontage 
improvements shall be phased with the completion of the phases for the 
subdivision as noted below. The footage is based on the footage of property 
adjacent to the State Route 227 right-of-way, actual required improvements on 
the path are determined based on the total length of improvements for the entire 
path:   

o Unit 1: 303 LF 
o Unit 2: 283 LF 
o Unit 3: 442 LF 

• The Master Plan identifies Stitzel Road as a Collector. The roadway will function 
as a residential collector and will be developed to that standard within a 60 foot 
right-of-way. 

• The remaining proposed streets will function as local streets. The roadways will 
be developed to that standard within a 50 foot right-of-way. 

• Applicable objectives of the Transportation Component are 
o Objective 1-Provide a balanced transportation system that accommodates 

vehicles, bicycles, and pedestrians, while being sensitive to, and 
supporting the adjacent land uses.  

o Objective 2-Provide a backbone of arterial roadways to emphasize 
regional vehicle travel and provide adequate capacity to move large traffic 
volumes, including truck traffic, safely and efficiently.  

 
The subdivision is in general conformance with the Master Plan.  
 
Elko Redevelopment Plan 
 
The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.  
 
Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 
 
The proposed subdivision is not located within any capture zone for City Wells.  
 



Page 4 of 11 

 
Section 3-2-3-General Provisions 
 

• Section 3-2-3(C)(1) of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use 
restrictions shall apply: 

o Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically 
designated as "principal uses permitted" in zoning district regulations shall 
be permitted as principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as 
principal uses.  

o Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted 
principal or conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified. 

o Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.  
 

• Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the 
land is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or 
structure by reason of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, 
adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion 
susceptibility, or any other features likely to be harmful to the health, safety and 
general welfare of the community. The planning commission, in applying the 
provisions of this section, shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its 
conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the right to present evidence 
contesting such determination to the city council if he or she so desires, 
whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the determination of 
unsuitability.” 
 

It appears the section of code will be met with the proposed development. 
 
Section 3-2-4-Establishment of Zoning Districts 
 

• Conformance with this section is required.  
 
3-2-5-Residential Zoning Districts 
 

B. R1-Single-Family Residential District 
a. Conformance with this section is required  
b. The plat complies with the requirements under this section 
c. Location of single-family residences shall be in conformance with the 

setbacks found in subsection G.  
 
3-2-17-Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 
 

• Conformance with this section is required. 

• All lots shall be provided with the required number of off street parking spaces. 

• Access to lost shall conform with this section.  
 



Page 5 of 11 

 
3-3-5-Preliminary Plat Stage (Stage II) 
 

F. Significance of Preliminary Approval, subject to the provisions of this section and 
NRS 278.360, the final plat shall be recorded within 4 years of the date of 
approval of the Preliminary Plat.   

 
Section 3-3-6-Final Plat Stage (Stage III) 
 

A. Presubmission Requirements 
1. Zoning-The area in which the subdivision is located is R1-Single-Family 

Residential. A zoning amendment is not required.  
2. Preparation of Final Plat-The Final Plat conforms closely with the prepared 

preliminary plat 4-17.   
3. Easements-The final plat has the required approval from public utilities for 

easements.  
 

Section 3-3-8-Information Required for Final Plat Submission 
 

A. Form and Content-The final plat conforms to the required size specifications and 
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.  

B. Identification Data 
1. The subdivision map identified the subdivision, and provides its location by 

section, township, range and county.  
2. The subdivision map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.  
3. The subdivision map provides a scale, north point, and date of 

preparation.  
C. Survey Data 

1. The boundaries of the tract are fully balanced and closed.  
2. All exceptions are noted on the plat.  
3. The location and description of cardinal points are tied to a section corner.  
4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the 

boundary of the tract are noted on the plat.  
D. Descriptive Data 

1. The name, right of way lines, courses, lengths and widths of all streets 
and easements are noted on the plat.  

2. All drainageways are noted on the plan.  
3. All utility and public service easements are noted on the plat.  
4. The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels and exceptions are shown 

on the plat.  
5. All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the plat.  
6. There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the plat.  
7. The location of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the plat with required 

information.  
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed. Lots 122 shall have access 

restricted to Chukar Drive.  



Page 6 of 11 

 
E. Dedication and Acknowledgment 

1. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all 
easements and right of ways.  

2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged and certified by a notary 
public.  

F. Additional Information 
1. All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the plat.  
2. The centerline and width of each right of way is noted on the plat.  
3. The plat indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine 

the boundaries of the subdivision.  
4. The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the plat.  
5. The city boundary adjoining the subdivision is not identified on the plat, as 

the plat is not adjoining a boundary.  
6. The plat identifies the location of the section lines, and 1/16th section line 

adjoining the subdivision boundaries.  
G. City Engineer to Check 

1. The Engineer shall check the final map for accuracy of dimensions, 
placement of monuments, the establishment of survey records, and 
conformance with the preliminary map.  

a) Closure calculations have been provided.  
b) Civil improvement plans have been provided, previous civil 

improvement plans have been approved for this subdivision.   
c) Civil improvement plans for drainage have been submitted. 
d) An engineer’s estimate has been provided.  

2. It appears the lot closures are within the required tolerances.  
H. Required certifications 

1. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the final plat.  
2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right of ways shown on the 

plat.  
3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the final plat, certifying the signature of the 

City Council. 
4. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the 

plat.   
5. A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the plat and provides the required 

language.  
6. The City Engineer’s Certificate is listed on the plat.  
7. A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is 

provided with the required language.  
8. A copy of review by the state engineer is not available at this time.  
9. A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the plat 

with the required language.  
10. The civil improvement plans identify the required water meters for the 

subdivision.  
 



Page 7 of 11 

 
3-3-20-General Provisions for Subdivision Design 
 

A. Conformance with Mater Plan-The proposed subdivision is in conformance with 
the requirements and objectives of the Mater Plan, Land Use and Transportation 
Components. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the City zoning 
ordinances.  

B. There are no public sites offered for dedication with this subdivision.  
C. The land for the subdivision appears to be suitable for subdividing. The 

subdivision does not appear to be unsuitable for use by reason of flooding, 
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, 
extreme topography, erosion susceptibility or similar conditions which are likely to 
prove harmful to the health and safety and general welfare of the community or 
the future property owners. 

 
3-3-21-Street Location and Arrangement 
 

• The proposed subdivision is in conformance with this section, all streets are 
platted in conformance with the City Master Plan. Local Residential Street are 
arranged to discourage pass through traffic.  

 
3-3-22-Street Design 
 

• The proposed subdivision appears to be in conformance with this section.  
 
3-3-23-Block Design 
 

• The proposed subdivision appears to be in conformance with this section. 
 
3-3-24-Lot Planning 
 

• The proposed subdivision appears to be in conformance with this section. 
 

3-3-25-Easement Planning 
 

• The subdivision has offered for dedication the required utility and drainage 
easements as required by this section.  

 
3-3-26-Street Naming 
 

• All proposed street names are an extension of existing streets from previous 
phases and conform to the Preliminary Plat.  

 
 



Page 8 of 11 

 
3-3-27-Street Lighting Design Standards 
 

• The required street lighting is identified on the civil improvement plans.  
 
3-3-40-Responsibility for Improvements 
 

• The developer shall be responsible for all required improvements.  
 
3-3-41-Engineering Plans 
 

• Civil improvement plans have been submitted and previously approved.  
 
3-3-42-Construction and Inspection 
 

• The developer has submitted plans for review to receive all required permits.  
 
3-3-43-Required Improvements 
 

• Civil improvement plans have been submitted and are in conformance with this 
section of code.  

• Civil improvements include curb, gutter and sidewalk, paving and utilities within 
the Stitzel Road, Chukar Drive, and Partridge Drive right of ways.  

• Civil improvements including a shared use pathe are shown within the SR 227 
right of way.   

 
3-3-44-Agreement to Install Improvements 
 

• The subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to 
address the conditions of this section.  

 
3-3-45-Performance Guarantee 
 

• The subdivider shall provide a Performance Guarantee as stipulated in the 
Performance Agreement.  

 
3-3-70-Modification of Standards 
 

A. Where in the opinion of the planning commission, there exists extraordinary 
conditions of topography, land ownership, or adjacent development, the city 
council may modify the provisions of this chapter, or any other provision in this 
code, in such a manner and to the minimum extent necessary to carry out the 
intent of this chapter.   

• The subdivision has frontage along Lamoille Highway (SR 227), Council 
took action on September 23, 2014 to require the construction of a shared 



Page 9 of 11 

 
use path in lieu of standard curb, gutter and sidewalk improvements, a 
modification of standards is not required.  

C. Additional Necessary Requirements: In modifying the standards or requirements 
of this chapter, as outlined heretofore, the council may make such additional 
requirements as are necessary in its judgement to secure substantially the 
objectives of the standards or requirements so modified.  

 
3-8-Floodplain Management 
 

• The proposed subdivision is not located within a special flood hazard area.  
 
8-18-Public Improvement Standards 
 

• Conformance with this section is required.  
 
9-7-Construction Site Runoff Control  
 

• During construction of the subdivision and the erection of the housing, the 
developer shall be in conformance with this section of code.   

 
9-8-Postconstruction Runoff Control and Water Quality Management 
 

• Conformance with this section is required.   
 

Findings 

• The subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation 
components of the Master Plan.  

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-4-Establishment of Zoning Districts. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-5-B-Single-Family Residential Zoning 
Districts.  

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and 
Loading Regulations.  

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-6-Final Plat (Stage III). 

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-8-Information required for Final Plat 
Submission. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-20-General Provisions for Subdivision 
Design. 

o The subdivision does not appear to be unsuitable for use by reason of 
flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock 
formation, extreme topography, erosion susceptibility or similar conditions 
which are likely to prove harmful to the health and safety and general 
welfare of the community or the future property owners.   

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-21-Street Location and Arrangement. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-22-Street Design.  



Page 10 of 11 

 

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-23-Block Design.  

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-24-Lot Planning. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-25-Easement Planning. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-26-Street Naming.  

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-27-Street Lighting Design Standards. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-40-Responsibility for Improvements. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-41-Engineering Plans. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-42-Construction and Inspection.  

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-43-Required Improvements.  

• The subdivider shall enter into a performance agreement to address the 
conditions found in 3-3-44-Agreement to Install Improvements.  

• The subdivider shall provide a performance guarantee as stipulated in the 
performance agreement and 3-3-45-Performance Guarantee. 

 
Recommendation 
 
The City of Elko Development Department recommends approval of the subdivision 
based on the following conditions: 
 

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in accordance with 
Section 3-3-44 of city code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in 
accordance with Section 3-3-44 of city code. In conformance with Section 3-3-44 
of city code, the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later 
than two (2) years of the date of Final Plat approval by the City Council unless 
extended as stipulated in city code. The developer shall enter into the 
Performance Agreement within 30 days of approval of the final plat by City 
Council.  

2. The final plat is approved for 23 single family residential lots and 2 remainder 
lots.  

3. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter.  
4. State approval of the subdivision.  
5. Lot 122 shall have access restricted to Chukar Drive, a note shall be added to 

the final plat prior to City Council consideration.  
6. Update the dates in the jurats to reflect 2018 prior to City Council 

consideration.  
7. Conformance with Preliminary Plat conditions. 
8. Public improvements are required on the State Route 227 frontage or on the south 

southwest side of the State Route in accordance with NDOT approval. The extent, 
location and type of public improvements will be determined through the review 
and approval process for the civil improvement plans.   

9. Civil improvements are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code. 
10. Final approval for civil improvement plans.  
11. State approvals for the subdivision. 
12. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the 

qualified engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along 



Page 11 of 11 

 
with the required inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for 
submittal to the City of Elko. The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials 
meet the latest edition Standard Specifications for Public Works. All Right –of-
Way and utility improvements are to be certified by the Engineer of Record for 
the project.  
 
 











 
 

 
LOT CALCULATIONS 

 
FOR 

 
TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 

UNIT NUMBER 1 
ELKO, NEVADA 

 
 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

Jordanelle Third Mortgage, LLC 
4518 North 32nd Street 

Phoenix, Arizona  85018 
 

Contact: 
Scott MacRitchie 
 (775) 340-6005 

 

 
PREPARED BY 

 
HIGH DESERT Engineering 

640 Idaho Street 
Elko, Nevada 

 
February, 2018



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 1 

 

Parcel name: LOT 101 
 
   North: 13555.620           East : 60439.685        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 100.00           
        North: 13631.589             East : 60504.713        
Line  Course: S 89-58-43 E  Length: 105.14           
        North: 13631.550             East : 60609.853        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 168.34           
        North: 13503.663             East : 60500.385        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 79.90            
        North: 13555.621             East : 60439.685        
 
   Perimeter: 453.38   Area: 10,720 SF 0.246 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.001                Course: N 20-01-31 E 
  Error North: 0.0007                East : 0.0003           
Precision  1: 453,380.00       
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 102 
 
   North: 13503.663           East : 60500.383        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 168.34           
        North: 13631.550             East : 60609.852        
Line  Course: S 25-51-04 E  Length: 81.84            
        North: 13557.900             East : 60645.537        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 135.59           
        North: 13454.893             East : 60557.365        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 75.00            
        North: 13503.664             East : 60500.388        
 
   Perimeter: 460.77   Area: 11,398 SF 0.262 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.005                Course: N 80-51-39 E 
  Error North: 0.0008                East : 0.0047           
Precision  1: 92,154.00        
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 103 
 
   North: 13454.892           East : 60557.360        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 135.59           
        North: 13557.899             East : 60645.532        
Line  Course: S 25-51-04 E  Length: 98.80            
        North: 13468.986             East : 60688.612        



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 2 

 

Curve  Length: 51.46                Radius: 125.00      
        Delta: 23-35-10            Tangent: 26.10            
        Chord: 51.09                Course: S 52-21-21 W 
    Course In: S 25-51-04 E     Course Out: N 49-26-14 W 
    RP  North: 13356.495             East : 60743.116        
    End North: 13437.780             East : 60648.155        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 31.05            
        North: 13414.191             East : 60627.963        
Curve  Length: 23.56                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.00            
        Chord: 21.21                Course: S 85-33-46 W 
    Course In: N 49-26-14 W     Course Out: S 40-33-46 W 
    RP  North: 13423.946             East : 60616.568        
    End North: 13412.550             East : 60606.814        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 65.10            
        North: 13454.884             East : 60557.358        
 
   Perimeter: 405.56   Area: 9,607 SF 0.221 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.009                Course: S 16-49-47 W 
  Error North: -0.0088               East : -0.0027          
Precision  1: 45,062.22        
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 104 
 
   North: 13468.992           East : 60688.614        
Line  Course: N 25-51-04 W  Length: 180.63           
        North: 13631.546             East : 60609.853        
Line  Course: S 89-58-43 E  Length: 149.80           
        North: 13631.490             East : 60759.653        
Line  Course: S 00-01-17 W  Length: 150.00           
        North: 13481.490             East : 60759.597        
Line  Course: N 89-58-43 W  Length: 16.43            
        North: 13481.496             East : 60743.167        
Curve  Length: 56.45                Radius: 125.00      
        Delta: 25-52-21            Tangent: 28.71            
        Chord: 55.97                Course: S 77-05-07 W 
    Course In: S 00-01-17 W     Course Out: N 25-51-04 W 
    RP  North: 13356.496             East : 60743.120        
    End North: 13468.987             East : 60688.616        
 
   Perimeter: 553.30   Area: 17,275 SF 0.397 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.005                Course: S 28-35-00 E 
  Error North: -0.0041               East : 0.0022           



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 3 

 

Precision  1: 110,662.00       
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 105 
 
   North: 13481.494           East : 60759.593        
Line  Course: N 00-01-17 E  Length: 150.00           
        North: 13631.494             East : 60759.649        
Line  Course: S 89-58-43 E  Length: 95.00            
        North: 13631.459             East : 60854.649        
Line  Course: S 00-01-17 W  Length: 150.00           
        North: 13481.459             East : 60854.593        
Line  Course: N 89-58-43 W  Length: 95.00            
        North: 13481.494             East : 60759.593        
 
   Perimeter: 490.00   Area: 14,250 SF 0.327 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.000                Course: S 90-00-00 E 
  Error North: 0.0000                East : 0.0000           
Precision  1: 490,000,000.00   
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 106 
 
   North: 13481.459           East : 60854.593        
Line  Course: N 00-01-17 E  Length: 150.00           
        North: 13631.459             East : 60854.649        
Line  Course: S 89-58-43 E  Length: 87.86            
        North: 13631.426             East : 60942.509        
Line  Course: S 00-01-17 W  Length: 150.00           
        North: 13481.426             East : 60942.453        
Line  Course: N 89-58-43 W  Length: 87.86            
        North: 13481.459             East : 60854.593        
 
   Perimeter: 475.72   Area: 13,179 SF 0.303 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.000                Course: S 90-00-00 E 
  Error North: 0.0000                East : 0.0000           
Precision  1: 475,720,000.00   
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 107 
 
   North: 13481.418           East : 60962.453        



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 4 

 

Line  Course: N 00-01-17 E  Length: 150.00           
        North: 13631.418             East : 60962.509        
Line  Course: S 89-58-43 E  Length: 80.22            
        North: 13631.388             East : 61042.729        
Line  Course: S 00-04-57 W  Length: 205.09           
        North: 13426.299             East : 61042.434        
Line  Course: N 89-55-03 W  Length: 25.00            
        North: 13426.335             East : 61017.434        
Curve  Length: 86.45                Radius: 55.00       
        Delta: 90-03-40            Tangent: 55.06            
        Chord: 77.82                Course: N 44-56-53 W 
    Course In: N 89-55-03 W     Course Out: N 00-01-17 E 
    RP  North: 13426.414             East : 60962.434        
    End North: 13481.414             East : 60962.455        
 
   Perimeter: 546.76   Area: 14,048 SF 0.323 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.005                Course: S 15-53-14 E 
  Error North: -0.0046               East : 0.0013           
Precision  1: 109,352.00       
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 108 
 
   North: 13426.339           East : 61017.433        
Line  Course: S 89-55-03 E  Length: 25.00            
        North: 13426.303             East : 61042.433        
Line  Course: S 00-04-57 W  Length: 226.38           
        North: 13199.923             East : 61042.107        
Line  Course: N 64-33-10 W  Length: 67.09            
        North: 13228.751             East : 60981.526        
Line  Course: N 52-32-36 W  Length: 40.33            
        North: 13253.278             East : 60949.511        
Line  Course: N 00-01-17 E  Length: 119.67           
        North: 13372.948             East : 60949.556        
Curve  Length: 99.32                Radius: 55.00       
        Delta: 103-27-41           Tangent: 69.72            
        Chord: 86.36                Course: N 51-48-48 E 
    Course In: N 13-32-38 E     Course Out: S 89-55-03 E 
    RP  North: 13426.418             East : 60962.436        
    End North: 13426.339             East : 61017.436        
 
   Perimeter: 577.79   Area: 15,736 SF 0.361 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.004                Course: S 87-54-16 E 
  Error North: -0.0001               East : 0.0036           



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 5 

 

Precision  1: 144,447.50       
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 109 
 
   North: 13372.948           East : 60949.552        
Line  Course: S 00-01-17 W  Length: 119.67           
        North: 13253.278             East : 60949.508        
Line  Course: N 52-32-36 W  Length: 33.97            
        North: 13273.937             East : 60922.542        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 170.00           
        North: 13384.485             East : 60793.394        
Line  Course: N 46-54-13 W  Length: 68.82            
        North: 13431.505             East : 60743.141        
Line  Course: S 89-58-43 E  Length: 150.01           
        North: 13431.449             East : 60893.151        
Curve  Length: 21.41                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 81-47-12            Tangent: 12.99            
        Chord: 19.64                Course: S 49-05-07 E 
    Course In: S 00-01-17 W     Course Out: N 81-48-29 E 
    RP  North: 13416.449             East : 60893.145        
    End North: 13418.586             East : 60907.992        
Curve  Length: 65.53                Radius: 55.00       
        Delta: 68-15-51            Tangent: 37.28            
        Chord: 61.72                Course: S 42-19-26 E 
    Course In: N 81-48-29 E     Course Out: S 13-32-38 W 
    RP  North: 13426.423             East : 60962.431        
    End North: 13372.952             East : 60949.551        
 
   Perimeter: 629.40   Area: 16,991 SF 0.390 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.005                Course: N 18-55-13 W 
  Error North: 0.0045                East : -0.0015          
Precision  1: 125,882.00       
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 110 
 
   North: 13431.500           East : 60743.146        
Line  Course: S 46-54-13 E  Length: 68.82            
        North: 13384.481             East : 60793.399        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 100.00           
        North: 13308.511             East : 60728.371        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 80.00            
        North: 13360.534             East : 60667.595        
Curve  Length: 23.56                Radius: 15.00       



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 6 

 

        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.00            
        Chord: 21.21                Course: N 04-26-14 W 
    Course In: N 40-33-46 E     Course Out: N 49-26-14 W 
    RP  North: 13371.929             East : 60677.349        
    End North: 13381.683             East : 60665.954        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 31.05            
        North: 13405.272             East : 60686.145        
Curve  Length: 64.74                Radius: 75.00       
        Delta: 49-27-31            Tangent: 34.54            
        Chord: 62.75                Course: N 65-17-32 E 
    Course In: S 49-26-14 E     Course Out: N 00-01-17 E 
    RP  North: 13356.501             East : 60743.122        
    End North: 13431.501             East : 60743.150        
 
   Perimeter: 368.17   Area: 9,179 SF 0.211 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.004                Course: N 84-41-43 E 
  Error North: 0.0004                East : 0.0042           
Precision  1: 92,042.50        
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 111 
 
   North: 13308.513           East : 60728.369        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 100.00           
        North: 13384.483             East : 60793.397        
Line  Course: S 49-26-14 E  Length: 85.00            
        North: 13329.209             East : 60857.971        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 100.00           
        North: 13253.239             East : 60792.943        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 85.00            
        North: 13308.513             East : 60728.369        
 
   Perimeter: 370.00   Area: 8,500 SF 0.195 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.000                Course: S 75-57-50 E 
  Error North: -0.0000               East : 0.0000           
Precision  1: 370,000,000.00   
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 112 
 
   North: 13253.239           East : 60792.943        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 100.00           
        North: 13329.209             East : 60857.971        



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 7 

 

Line  Course: S 49-26-14 E  Length: 85.00            
        North: 13273.935             East : 60922.545        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 100.00           
        North: 13197.965             East : 60857.516        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 85.00            
        North: 13253.239             East : 60792.943        
 
   Perimeter: 370.00   Area: 8,500 SF 0.195 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.000                Course: S 75-57-50 E 
  Error North: -0.0000               East : 0.0000           
Precision  1: 370,000,000.00   
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 113 
 
   North: 13197.965           East : 60857.516        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 100.00           
        North: 13273.935             East : 60922.545        
Line  Course: S 52-32-36 E  Length: 74.30            
        North: 13228.748             East : 60981.525        
Line  Course: S 31-27-53 W  Length: 100.00           
        North: 13143.452             East : 60929.328        
Curve  Length: 66.69                Radius: 420.00      
        Delta: 9-05-53             Tangent: 33.42            
        Chord: 66.62                Course: N 53-59-10 W 
    Course In: N 31-27-53 E     Course Out: S 40-33-46 W 
    RP  North: 13501.696             East : 61148.556        
    End North: 13182.625             East : 60875.438        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 23.59            
        North: 13197.965             East : 60857.517        
 
   Perimeter: 364.58   Area: 8,316 SF 0.191 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.001                Course: S 55-28-45 E 
  Error North: -0.0006               East : 0.0008           
Precision  1: 364,580.00       
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 114 
 
   North: 13143.454           East : 60929.325        
Line  Course: N 31-27-53 E  Length: 100.00           
        North: 13228.751             East : 60981.522        
Line  Course: S 64-33-10 E  Length: 67.09            



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 8 

 

        North: 13199.923             East : 61042.103        
Line  Course: S 00-04-57 W  Length: 104.47           
        North: 13095.453             East : 61041.953        
Curve  Length: 122.87               Radius: 420.00      
        Delta: 16-45-43            Tangent: 61.88            
        Chord: 122.43               Course: N 66-54-59 W 
    Course In: N 14-42-10 E     Course Out: S 31-27-53 W 
    RP  North: 13501.701             East : 61148.551        
    End North: 13143.457             East : 60929.322        
 
   Perimeter: 394.44   Area: 9,590 SF 0.220 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.004                Course: N 49-37-01 W 
  Error North: 0.0025                East : -0.0029          
Precision  1: 98,607.50        
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 115 
 
   North: 13422.598           East : 60502.820        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 125.00           
        North: 13327.637             East : 60421.535        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 73.39            
        North: 13375.361             East : 60365.781        
Line  Course: N 33-03-46 E  Length: 67.19            
        North: 13431.671             East : 60402.437        
Curve  Length: 43.50                Radius: 332.35      
        Delta: 7-30-00             Tangent: 21.78            
        Chord: 43.47                Course: N 36-48-46 E 
    Course In: S 56-56-14 E     Course Out: N 49-26-14 W 
    RP  North: 13250.355             East : 60680.971        
    End North: 13466.476             East : 60428.486        
Curve  Length: 23.56                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.00            
        Chord: 21.21                Course: N 85-33-46 E 
    Course In: S 49-26-14 E     Course Out: N 40-33-46 E 
    RP  North: 13456.721             East : 60439.882        
    End North: 13468.117             East : 60449.636        
Line  Course: S 49-26-14 E  Length: 70.00            
        North: 13422.597             East : 60502.815        
 
   Perimeter: 402.65   Area: 10,054 SF 0.231 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.006                Course: S 77-38-29 W 
  Error North: -0.0012               East : -0.0054          
Precision  1: 67,106.67        



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 9 

 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 116 
 
   North: 13373.827           East : 60559.797        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 125.00           
        North: 13278.866             East : 60478.512        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 75.00            
        North: 13327.637             East : 60421.535        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 125.00           
        North: 13422.598             East : 60502.820        
Line  Course: S 49-26-14 E  Length: 75.00            
        North: 13373.827             East : 60559.797        
 
   Perimeter: 400.00   Area: 9,375 SF 0.215 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.000                Course: S 00-00-00 W 
  Error North: -0.0000               East : 0.0000           
Precision  1: 400,000,000.00   
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 117 
 
   North: 13325.056           East : 60616.774        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 125.00           
        North: 13230.095             East : 60535.489        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 75.00            
        North: 13278.866             East : 60478.512        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 125.00           
        North: 13373.827             East : 60559.797        
Line  Course: S 49-26-14 E  Length: 75.00            
        North: 13325.056             East : 60616.774        
 
   Perimeter: 400.00   Area: 9,375 SF 0.215 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.000                Course: S 00-00-00 W 
  Error North: -0.0000               East : 0.0000           
Precision  1: 400,000,000.00   
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 118 
 
   North: 13276.285           East : 60673.751        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 125.00           



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 10 

 

        North: 13181.323             East : 60592.466        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 75.00            
        North: 13230.095             East : 60535.489        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 125.00           
        North: 13325.056             East : 60616.774        
Line  Course: S 49-26-14 E  Length: 75.00            
        North: 13276.285             East : 60673.751        
 
   Perimeter: 400.00   Area: 9,375 SF 0.215 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.000                Course: S 00-00-00 W 
  Error North: -0.0000               East : 0.0000           
Precision  1: 400,000,000.00   
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 119 
 
   North: 13227.514           East : 60730.728        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 125.00           
        North: 13132.552             East : 60649.443        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 75.00            
        North: 13181.323             East : 60592.466        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 125.00           
        North: 13276.285             East : 60673.751        
Line  Course: S 49-26-14 E  Length: 75.00            
        North: 13227.514             East : 60730.728        
 
   Perimeter: 400.00   Area: 9,375 SF 0.215 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.000                Course: S 00-00-00 W 
  Error North: -0.0000               East : 0.0000           
Precision  1: 400,000,000.00   
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 120 
 
   North: 13178.743           East : 60787.705        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 125.00           
        North: 13083.781             East : 60706.420        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 75.00            
        North: 13132.552             East : 60649.443        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 125.00           
        North: 13227.514             East : 60730.728        
Line  Course: S 49-26-14 E  Length: 75.00            
        North: 13178.743             East : 60787.705        



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 11 

 

 
   Perimeter: 400.00   Area: 9,375 SF 0.215 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.000                Course: S 00-00-00 W 
  Error North: -0.0000               East : 0.0000           
Precision  1: 400,000,000.00   
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 121 
 
   North: 13130.066           East : 60844.762        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 125.12           
        North: 13035.013             East : 60763.399        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 75.00            
        North: 13083.784             East : 60706.422        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 125.00           
        North: 13178.746             East : 60787.707        
Line  Course: S 49-26-14 E  Length: 64.12            
        North: 13137.050             East : 60836.419        
Curve  Length: 10.88                Radius: 480.00      
        Delta: 1-17-54             Tangent: 5.44             
        Chord: 10.88                Course: S 50-05-11 E 
    Course In: N 40-33-46 E     Course Out: S 39-15-52 W 
    RP  North: 13501.703             East : 61148.554        
    End North: 13130.071             East : 60844.762        
 
   Perimeter: 400.12   Area: 9,375 SF 0.215 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.005                Course: N 10-46-45 W 
  Error North: 0.0051                East : -0.0010          
Precision  1: 80,024.00        
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 122 
 
   North: 13012.939           East : 60886.837        
Line  Course: N 89-55-03 W  Length: 79.55            
        North: 13013.054             East : 60807.287        
Line  Course: N 63-25-29 W  Length: 49.08            
        North: 13035.011             East : 60763.393        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 125.12           
        North: 13130.064             East : 60844.756        
Curve  Length: 62.85                Radius: 480.00      
        Delta: 7-30-08             Tangent: 31.47            
        Chord: 62.81                Course: S 54-29-12 E 



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 12 

 

    Course In: N 39-15-52 E     Course Out: S 31-45-44 W 
    RP  North: 13501.696             East : 61148.548        
    End North: 13093.580             East : 60895.878        
Curve  Length: 22.52                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 86-01-41            Tangent: 13.99            
        Chord: 20.47                Course: S 15-13-25 E 
    Course In: S 31-45-44 W     Course Out: S 62-12-35 E 
    RP  North: 13080.827             East : 60887.983        
    End North: 13073.833             East : 60901.252        
Curve  Length: 60.45                Radius: 125.00      
        Delta: 27-42-28            Tangent: 30.83            
        Chord: 59.86                Course: S 13-56-11 W 
    Course In: S 62-12-35 E     Course Out: N 89-55-03 W 
    RP  North: 13015.554             East : 61011.835        
    End North: 13015.734             East : 60886.835        
Line  Course: S 00-04-57 W  Length: 2.80             
        North: 13012.934             East : 60886.831        
 
   Perimeter: 402.37   Area: 10,016 SF 0.230 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.008                Course: S 48-46-34 W 
  Error North: -0.0055               East : -0.0063          
Precision  1: 50,296.25        
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 123 
 
   North: 13033.705           East : 61041.867        
Line  Course: S 00-04-57 W  Length: 75.00            
        North: 12958.705             East : 61041.759        
Line  Course: N 89-55-03 W  Length: 105.00           
        North: 12958.856             East : 60936.759        
Line  Course: N 00-04-57 E  Length: 56.81            
        North: 13015.666             East : 60936.841        
Curve  Length: 37.43                Radius: 75.00       
        Delta: 28-35-36            Tangent: 19.11            
        Chord: 37.04                Course: N 14-22-45 E 
    Course In: S 89-55-03 E     Course Out: N 61-19-27 W 
    RP  North: 13015.558             East : 61011.841        
    End North: 13051.547             East : 60946.040        
Curve  Length: 21.94                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 83-48-53            Tangent: 13.46            
        Chord: 20.04                Course: N 70-35-00 E 
    Course In: S 61-19-27 E     Course Out: N 22-29-26 E 
    RP  North: 13044.349             East : 60959.200        
    End North: 13058.208             East : 60964.938        
Curve  Length: 80.83                Radius: 480.00      



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 13 

 

        Delta: 9-38-55             Tangent: 40.51            
        Chord: 80.74                Course: S 72-20-01 E 
    Course In: N 22-29-26 E     Course Out: S 12-50-31 W 
    RP  North: 13501.701             East : 61148.553        
    End North: 13033.707             East : 61041.867        
 
   Perimeter: 377.01   Area: 9,228 SF 0.212 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.002                Course: N 01-54-29 W 
  Error North: 0.0023                East : -0.0001          
Precision  1: 188,505.00       
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: UNIT 1 - ALL 
 
   North: 13426.724           East : 60295.740        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 116.53           
        North: 13515.251             East : 60371.517        
Curve  Length: 23.56                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.00            
        Chord: 21.21                Course: N 85-33-46 E 
    Course In: S 49-26-14 E     Course Out: N 40-33-46 E 
    RP  North: 13505.496             East : 60382.913        
    End North: 13516.892             East : 60392.667        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 60.00            
        North: 13562.474             East : 60431.684        
Line  Course: S 49-26-14 E  Length: 10.54            
        North: 13555.620             East : 60439.691        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 100.00           
        North: 13631.589             East : 60504.719        
Line  Course: S 89-58-43 E  Length: 538.02           
        North: 13631.388             East : 61042.739        
Line  Course: S 00-04-57 W  Length: 672.68           
        North: 12958.709             East : 61041.770        
Line  Course: N 89-55-03 W  Length: 155.00           
        North: 12958.932             East : 60886.770        
Line  Course: N 00-04-57 E  Length: 54.01            
        North: 13012.942             East : 60886.848        
Line  Course: N 89-55-03 W  Length: 79.55            
        North: 13013.056             East : 60807.298        
Line  Course: N 63-25-29 W  Length: 49.08            
        North: 13035.014             East : 60763.404        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 523.39           
        North: 13375.364             East : 60365.788        
Line  Course: N 56-56-14 W  Length: 50.00            
        North: 13402.642             East : 60323.884        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 37.04            



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 14 

 

        North: 13426.728             East : 60295.745        
 
   Perimeter: 2469.39   Area: 345,004 SF 7.920 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.007                Course: N 45-27-45 E 
  Error North: 0.0048                East : 0.0048           
Precision  1: 352,771.43       
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: UNIT 1 STREETS 
 
        North: 13481.418             East : 60962.453        
Curve  Length: 251.30               Radius: 55.00       
        Delta: 261-47-12           Tangent: 63.51            
        Chord: 83.15                Course: S 40-54-53 W 
    Course In: S 00-01-17 W     Course Out: S 81-48-29 W 
    RP  North: 13426.418             East : 60962.433        
    End North: 13418.581             East : 60907.994        
Curve  Length: 21.41                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 81-47-12            Tangent: 12.99            
        Chord: 19.64                Course: N 49-05-07 W 
    Course In: S 81-48-29 W     Course Out: N 00-01-17 E 
    RP  North: 13416.444             East : 60893.147        
    End North: 13431.444             East : 60893.153        
Line  Course: N 89-58-43 W  Length: 150.01           
        North: 13431.500             East : 60743.143        
Curve  Length: 64.74                Radius: 75.00       
        Delta: 49-27-31            Tangent: 34.54            
        Chord: 62.75                Course: S 65-17-32 W 
    Course In: S 00-01-17 W     Course Out: N 49-26-14 W 
    RP  North: 13356.500             East : 60743.115        
    End North: 13405.271             East : 60686.138        
Line  Course: S 40-33-46 W  Length: 31.05            
        North: 13381.683             East : 60665.946        
Curve  Length: 23.56                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.00            
        Chord: 21.21                Course: S 04-26-14 E 
    Course In: S 49-26-14 E     Course Out: S 40-33-46 W 
    RP  North: 13371.928             East : 60677.342        
    End North: 13360.533             East : 60667.588        
Line  Course: S 49-26-14 E  Length: 273.59           
        North: 13182.623             East : 60875.432        
Curve  Length: 189.56               Radius: 420.00      
        Delta: 25-51-36            Tangent: 96.42            
        Chord: 187.96               Course: S 62-22-02 E 
    Course In: N 40-33-46 E     Course Out: S 14-42-10 W 
    RP  North: 13501.694             East : 61148.550        



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 15 

 

    End North: 13095.447             East : 61041.952        
Line  Course: S 00-04-57 W  Length: 61.75            
        North: 13033.697             East : 61041.863        
Curve  Length: 80.83                Radius: 480.00      
        Delta: 9-38-55             Tangent: 40.51            
        Chord: 80.74                Course: N 72-20-01 W 
    Course In: N 12-50-31 E     Course Out: S 22-29-26 W 
    RP  North: 13501.691             East : 61148.549        
    End North: 13058.198             East : 60964.934        
Curve  Length: 21.94                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 83-48-53            Tangent: 13.46            
        Chord: 20.04                Course: S 70-35-00 W 
    Course In: S 22-29-26 W     Course Out: N 61-19-27 W 
    RP  North: 13044.339             East : 60959.196        
    End North: 13051.537             East : 60946.036        
Curve  Length: 37.43                Radius: 75.00       
        Delta: 28-35-36            Tangent: 19.11            
        Chord: 37.04                Course: S 14-22-45 W 
    Course In: S 61-19-27 E     Course Out: N 89-55-03 W 
    RP  North: 13015.548             East : 61011.837        
    End North: 13015.656             East : 60936.837        
Line  Course: S 00-04-57 W  Length: 56.81            
        North: 12958.846             East : 60936.755        
Line  Course: N 89-55-03 W  Length: 50.00            
        North: 12958.918             East : 60886.755        
Line  Course: N 00-04-57 E  Length: 56.81            
        North: 13015.728             East : 60886.837        
Curve  Length: 60.45                Radius: 125.00      
        Delta: 27-42-28            Tangent: 30.83            
        Chord: 59.86                Course: N 13-56-11 E 
    Course In: S 89-55-03 E     Course Out: N 62-12-35 W 
    RP  North: 13015.548             East : 61011.837        
    End North: 13073.827             East : 60901.255        
Curve  Length: 22.52                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 86-01-41            Tangent: 13.99            
        Chord: 20.47                Course: N 15-13-25 W 
    Course In: N 62-12-35 W     Course Out: N 31-45-44 E 
    RP  North: 13080.821             East : 60887.985        
    End North: 13093.575             East : 60895.881        
Curve  Length: 73.73                Radius: 480.00      
        Delta: 8-48-02             Tangent: 36.94            
        Chord: 73.66                Course: N 53-50-15 W 
    Course In: N 31-45-44 E     Course Out: S 40-33-46 W 
    RP  North: 13501.690             East : 61148.550        
    End North: 13137.037             East : 60836.416        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 509.12           
        North: 13468.108             East : 60449.640        
Curve  Length: 23.56                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.00            



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 16 

 

        Chord: 21.21                Course: S 85-33-46 W 
    Course In: S 40-33-46 W     Course Out: N 49-26-14 W 
    RP  North: 13456.712             East : 60439.886        
    End North: 13466.466             East : 60428.491        
Curve  Length: 43.50                Radius: 332.35      
        Delta: 7-30-00             Tangent: 21.78            
        Chord: 43.47                Course: S 36-48-46 W 
    Course In: S 49-26-14 E     Course Out: N 56-56-14 W 
    RP  North: 13250.346             East : 60680.975        
    End North: 13431.662             East : 60402.441        
Line  Course: S 33-03-46 W  Length: 67.19            
        North: 13375.352             East : 60365.785        
Line  Course: N 56-56-14 W  Length: 50.00            
        North: 13402.629             East : 60323.882        
Line  Course: N 49-26-14 W  Length: 37.04            
        North: 13426.716             East : 60295.742        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 116.53           
        North: 13515.243             East : 60371.520        
Curve  Length: 23.56                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.00            
        Chord: 21.21                Course: N 85-33-46 E 
    Course In: S 49-26-14 E     Course Out: N 40-33-46 E 
    RP  North: 13505.489             East : 60382.915        
    End North: 13516.884             East : 60392.669        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 60.00            
        North: 13562.466             East : 60431.686        
Line  Course: S 49-26-14 E  Length: 230.54           
        North: 13412.550             East : 60606.826        
Curve  Length: 23.56                Radius: 15.00       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.00            
        Chord: 21.21                Course: N 85-33-46 E 
    Course In: N 40-33-46 E     Course Out: S 49-26-14 E 
    RP  North: 13423.945             East : 60616.580        
    End North: 13414.191             East : 60627.976        
Line  Course: N 40-33-46 E  Length: 31.05            
        North: 13437.780             East : 60648.167        
Curve  Length: 107.90               Radius: 125.00      
        Delta: 49-27-31            Tangent: 57.57            
        Chord: 104.58               Course: N 65-17-32 E 
    Course In: S 49-26-14 E     Course Out: N 00-01-17 E 
    RP  North: 13356.495             East : 60743.129        
    End North: 13481.495             East : 60743.175        
Line  Course: S 89-58-43 E  Length: 199.29           
        North: 13481.420             East : 60942.465        
Line  Course: N 00-01-17 E  Length: 150.00           
        North: 13631.420             East : 60942.521        
Line  Course: S 89-58-43 E  Length: 20.00            
        North: 13631.413             East : 60962.521        
Line  Course: S 00-01-17 W  Length: 150.00           



TOWER HILL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NUMBER 1 
 
LOT CALCULATIONS 
 
 

 
page 17 

 

        North: 13481.413             East : 60962.465        
 
   Perimeter: 3370.33   Area: 92,169 SF 2.116 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.013                Course: S 64-50-50 E 
  Error North: -0.0056               East : 0.0120           
Precision  1: 259,256.15       























January 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 2 

i n  t h i s  i s s u e :  

Review/Use-Town finds proposed community therapeutic resi- 
dence is a "health care facility" permitted as a conditional use 2 

Nonconforming Use- ZBA determines that hosting live concerts 
is consistent with property's prior, legal nonconforming use 
as a campsite 6 

Variance-Church challenges District of Columbia's grant of an 
area variance to synagogue 8 

Zoning News from Around the Nation 1 1  

Mat #42078482 



January 25, 20 18  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 2 Zoning Bul let in 

Review/Use-Town finds proposed 
community therapeutic residence is 
a "health care facility" permitted as 

a conditional use 

Neighbors chal lenge grant of condit ional use 
permit , contending that proposed faci l ity i s  a  

"residential facil ity," prohibited in the zoning 

------- Contributors ------- 

Corey E. Burnham-Howard 

For authorization to photocopy, please contact the West's Copyright Clear 
ance Center at 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, USA (978) 750- 
8400; fax (978) 646-8600 or West's Copyright Services at 610  Opperman 
Drive, Eagan, MN 55123, fax (651)  687-7551. Please outline the specific ma 
terial involved, the number of copies you wish to distribute and the purpose or 
format of the use. 

This publication was created to provide you with accurate and authoritative in 
formation concerning the subject matter covered; however, this publication 
was not necessarily prepared by persons licensed to practice law in a particu 
lar jurisdiction. The publisher is not engaged in rendering legal or other profes 
sional advice and this publ ication is not a substitute for the advice of an 
attorney. If you require legal or other expert advice, you should seek the ser 
vices of a competent attorney or other professional. 

Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson Reuters, 61 O Op 
perman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. For subscription 
information: call (800) 229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing, 
620 Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753. 

POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bul let in, 6 1 0  Opperman 
Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. 

{/5% THOMSON REUTERS® 
•::'?::�·:• 

6 1 0  Opperman Drive 
P.O. Box 64526 

St. Paul, MN 55164-0526 
1-800-229-2084 

email : west.customerseNice@thomsonreuters.com 
ISSN 0514-7905 

c 2018 Thomson Reuters 
All Rights Heserved 

Quinlan rM is a Thomson Reuters brand 

2 g 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bul let in 

distr ict 

January 25, 2 0 1 8  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 2 

Citation: In re Confluence Behavioral Health, LLC, 2017  VT 112, 
2017 WL 6102805 (Vt. 2017) 

VERMONT ( 12/08/17)-This case addressed the issue of whether a 
community therapeutic residence qual ified as a "health care facility" 
under a town's zoning bylaws and thus was a permitted use in the ap 
pl icable zoning district. The case also addressed the issue of whether 
the Supreme Court of Vermont, when reviewing the Superior Court, 
Environmental Divis ion's  interpretation of permit conditions and local 
zoning ordinances, reviews with or without deference to the Environ 
mental Divis ion .  

The Background/Facts: Confluence  Behav iora l  Heal th ,  LLC 
("CBH") proposed to operate a therapeut ic  communi ty  res idence 
("Project") on property zoned "Rural Res ident ia l"  in the Town of 
Thetford (the "Town"). CBH's  Project was l icensed by the Vermont 
Department of Disabi l i t ies ,  Aging and Independent Living ("DAIL"). 
The Project was to be "a short- term wi lderness  therapy program 
designed to treat young male adults ," through the combination of "cl in i  
cal therapeutic services with adventure-based wi lderness therapy and 
agrarian l i v ing to help cl ients address mental-health diagnoses, as well 
as emotional ,  behavioral, and relat ional chal lenges ." The Project was 
to house 48 patients and 37 staff at any one t ime. 

The Town's  Deve lopment  Rev iew Board ("DRB")  i s sued a  
condi t ional -use and s i te-plan approval for CBH 's Project. The DRB 
based its approval on its finding that the Project was a "health care fa 
ci l i ty ," permitted as a condit ional use under the Town's Zoning Bylaws 
(the "Bylaws") .  

Under the Bylaws, the Rural Residential zoning district was intended 
to "mainta in an area of low average dens i ty that is compatib le w i th  
clusters of high-density, remaining pr imari ly a distr ict of open space, 
farms, residences, and woodlands, wi th scattered commercial uses that 
are either home-based or dependent on natural resources." Under the 
Bylaws,  health care faci l i t ies were al lowed as condit ional uses in  the 
Town's Rural Residential areas. 

A group of Project neighbors (the "Neighbors") appealed the DRB 's 
decision to the Superior Court, Env ironmental Divis ion .  The Neighbors 
argued that the Project was not a "health care faci l i ty" for purposes of 
the By laws .  Rather, they argued, the Project was a "residentia l  facil 
ity ," "community residence," or "group l i v i ng  fac i l i ty ," which was 
prohibited in the Town 's Rural Residential distr ict .  Alternatively ,  the 
Neighbors argued that even if the Project was a "health care fac i l ity," 
its addi t ional  use as a resident ial faci l i ty  was precluded under the 
Bylaws. 

g 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 3 



January 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 2 Zoning Bul let in 

The Environmental Division concluded that the Project was a "health 
care facil ity." 

The Neighbors appealed. 

DECISION: Judgment of Superior Court affirmed. 

The Supreme Court of Vermont concluded that CB H's Project was a 
"health care faci l ity" under the Town's Bylaws and, thus,  CBH was 
entitled to a conditional use permit. 

In so concluding, the court first addressed the parties' disagreement 
about the level of deference the Supreme Court of Vermont should give 
to the Environmental D iv i s i on ' s  interpretation of municipal  zoning 
ordinances. The Neighbors contended that the interpretation of a zon 
ing ordinance presents a legal i ssue that the court should review de 
novo ( i . e . ,  starting from the beginning;  anew) without deference to the 
Environmental Division.  In contrast, CBH asserted that the deference 
the court had historically given to the Environmental Division with re 
spect to findings of fact extended to the court's interpretation of zoning 
ordinances. 

The court admitted that, in prior case law, it had made "arguably in  
consistent statements on the subject [of deference to the Environmental 
Div is ion] ."  Overruling some of its prior holdings in several cases, here, 
the court determined that it would "[h]enceforth . . .  rev iew the 
Environmental Divis ion's  interpretation of permit condit ions and local 
zoning ordinances without deference." The court explained the basis 
for that determination: 

[WJhere the outcome of the matter turns not on findings of fact, but on 
interpretation of a statutory term, and where we are not reviewing a deci 
s ion by an agency charged wi th  promulgating and interpreting its own 
rules.  we employ the famil iar de novo standard of review for matters of 

law. 

In sum, the court stated that it reviews zoning ordinances and munic 
ipal permit conditions according to the principles of statutory construe 
t ion,  approaching the interpretation of such ordinances and permits "as 
a legal question that we resolve without deference to the tr ial court." 
Thus, here, the court concluded that it must review the Environmental 
Div is ion 's  determinations regarding CBH's Project de novo. 

In concluding that the Project was a "health care facility," the court 
looked at the language and intent of the Bylaws. Because the Bylaws 
did not define the term "health care facility," the court looked to: the 
common definit ions of "health care facility"; a Vermont statute defin 
ing "health care faci l i ty"; and prior caselaw that addressed whether 
therapeutic community residences were faci l i t ies used for "health 
purposes." The court found that CBH's Project "comport[ed]" with and 
"al ign[ed}" with those defini t ions .  The court also noted that under 
DAIL's l icensing authority, CBH's  Project would be recognized as a 
subcategory of "health care facility." 

4 e 2018  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bul let in January 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 2 

Notably, the Neighbors had argued that the Project was a "therapeutic 
community residence," and, consequently, could not be a "health care 
faci l i ty." The court responded to that argument not ing that "s imp ly  
because a particular use, or an aspect of a use, is not expressly listed as 
permitted in the Bylaws does not mean that use is prohibited." "More 
over," the court explained that there was "no reason to conclude that 
the Project's use as a 'therapeutic community residence' and its use as 
a 'health care facility' [were] mutual ly exclusive ." A "therapeutic com 
munity residence" can be a subcategory of "health care facility," said 
the court. Here, the Project was to provide professional mental-health 
counse l ing and treatment through on-site ,  inpat ient programs-ser 
vices commonly associated with "health care faci l i t ies ." Therefore, the 
court concluded that the purpose and pla in language of the Town 
Bylaws provided support for the content ion that CBH's Project was a 
"health care facility" and allowed as a conditional use. 

In a related argument, the Neighbors had further asserted that each 
of the proposed faci l ity's uses-as a therapeutic community residence, 
recreation, and health care facil i ty-must be al lowed wi th in  the proj 
ect's zoning district in  order for the facility to be permitted. The court 
agreed that each of CBH's  potential uses-therapeutic community res 
idence, recreation, and health care facility-must be allowed under the 
Bylaws, but noted that the Project d id not require conditional-use and 
site-plan approval for every use. "Where one use is a component of an 
other al lowed use, addit ional permitt ing v ia condit ional-use and site 
p lan review is not necessary," said the court .  Therefore, the court 
expla ined,  here, the residential use component of the Project did not 
require separate permitt ing above and beyond the Project's condit ional 
use and site-plan approval as a "health care faci l i ty ." 

See also: Fletcher Farm. Inc. 1•. Town of Cavendish, I 37 Vt. 582, 409 
A.2d 569 ( 1979) (determining that a l icensed therapeutic community 
residence, which inc luded "group therapy, work, recreation, family 
sty le meals and other related programs," was being used for "health 
purposes," and was therefore not exempt from real property tax under 
Vermont law). 

Case Note: 

The Neighbors had also argued that the Project "inipennissiblv reestab 

lishel d] the 'therapeutic retreats, conferences, and events' previously hosted 

I on the same property by a church] ,"  which, the Neighbors asserted 11·ere 

11011confor111i11g uses. Finding the Project 1rns a conditionally approved 

"health carefacility" in its mm right. the court determined that it need not 

consider that argument. 

c 2018  Thomson Reuters 5 



January 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 2 Zoning Bul let in 

Case Note: 

With regard to the holding on deference to the Environmental Division, the 

court's decision here overruled the following cases: overruling In re Wil 

lowell Foundation Conditional Use Certificate of Occupancy, 201 Vt. 242, 

2016 VT 12, 140 A.3d 179 (2016); In re Wagner & Guay Permit, 2016 VT 96, 

153 A.3d 539 (Vt. 2016); In re Group Five Investments CU Permit, 195 Vt. 

625, 2014 VT 14, 93 A.3d l l l (2014); and In re Champlain College Maple 

Street Dormitory, l 86 Vt. 313, 2009 VT 55, 980 A.2d 27 3, 249 Ed. Law Rep. 

284 (2009). 

Nonconforming Use- ZBA 
determines that hosting live 
concerts is consistent with 
property's prior, legal 
nonconforming use as a campsite 

Group of indiv iduals chal lenge that determinat ion, 
contending that the use of the property as a 
campsite did not equate to hosting commercial 
concerts 

Citation: Cleere v. Frost Ridge Campground, LLC, I 55 A.D.3d I 645, 
65 N.YS.3d405 (4th Dep t 2017) 

NEW YORK ( 1 1 / 1 7 / 1 7 ) - T h i s  case addressed the issue of whether 
the use of property owned by campsite operators to host l ive concerts 
was a preexisting nonconforming use. 

The Background/Facts: Since the 1950s, Frost Ridge Campground, 
LLC, individually and doing business as The Ridge N.Y. Recreation & 
Camping ("Frost Ridge") owned a parcel of land (the "Property") in 
the Town of Leroy (the "Town"), which functioned as a campsite and 
provider of recreational activities since the 1950s. In 20 I 0, Frost Ridge 
began sel l ing tickets for admission to concerts hosted on the Property 
as part of its summer concert series. In 2015 ,  Frost Ridge sought from 
the Town an interpretation of certain provisions of the Code of the 
Town of LeRoy (the "Code") pertaining to the Property. In particular, 
Frost Ridge asked whether camping and attendant recreational activi 
ties, including l ive and recorded amplified music and limited food ser- 

6 c 2018  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bul letin January 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 2 

vice, constituted a preexisting nonconforming use under section 1 6 5 - 1 3  
of the Code-thus al lowing its music concerts to continue without 
Town permit. After a hearing, the Town's Zoning Board of Appeals 
(the "ZBA") i ssued a  determinat ion that camping and attendant 
recreational activities on Frost Ridge's Property, including J ive and re 
corded amplified music and limited food service, constituted a preexist 
ing nonconforming use under the Code. 

Thereafter, David Cleere, Marny Cleere, W. Scott Collins, and Betsy 
Col l ins  (the "Petitioners") commenced a legal action to annul  the 
ZBA's determination. The Petitioners argued that the ZBA's decision 
was "arbitrary and capricious, made in  violat ion of the law, and not 
based on substantial evidence in as much as the use of the Property to 
host commercial concerts was not a preexisting nonconforming use." 

The Supreme Court ,  Genesee County ,  agreed with the ZBA's 
determinations, and dismissed the Petitioners' petition. 

The Petitioners appealed. 

DECISION: Judgment of Supreme Court, Genesee County, 
affirmed. 

The Supreme Court, Appellate Divis ion,  Fourth Department, New 
York, held that the use of the property to host l ive  concerts was a 
preexisting nonconforming use. 

In so holding, the court explained that a ZBA's determination "must 
be sustained if it has a rational basis and is supported by substantial 
evidence." The court also explained that "a use of property that existed 
before the enactment of a zoning restriction is a legal nonconforming 
use." 

The court explained that "[w]here ,  as here, a zoning ordinance 
permits the ZBA to interpret its requirements . . .  'specific application 
of a term of the ordinance to a particular property is . . .  governed by 
the [ZBA's] interpretation, un less  unreasonable or i rrat ional ' ."  The 
court concluded that the ZBA's interpretation and determination that 
hosting l ive concerts was consistent with the prior use of the property 
as a campsite was not, as the Petit ioners had argued, arbitrary and 
capr ic ious .  Rather, the court concluded that the ZBA "rat iona l ly  
interpreted the term 'campsite' as used in the Code as encompassing 
recreational activit ies inc luding live music in determining that the use 
of the Property was a preexisting nonconforming use ."  The court 
explained that, here, the Code did not define "campsite," but did require 
�ny large campsite to "provide a common open area suitable for recre 
ation and play purposes." Thus, the court concluded that the Code 
"expressly contemplate[d] that a campsite i s  a  place for recreation." 
Acknowledging that the kind of recreation contemplated was "open to 
interpretation," the court found it rational to conclude that l ive music 
was one "kind of recreation to be enjoyed at a campsite." Moreover, 

c 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 7 



January 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 2 Zoning Bul let in 

the court found that such an interpretation of the term "campsite," 
inc luding attendant recreational activities such as l ive music,  was "con 
sistent with the record evidence." Here, the court determined that there 
was "substantial evidence that the Property was used for recreational 
ac t i v i t i e s  and as a campsi te prior to the adopt ion of the zon ing  
ordinance." Such evidence inc luded :  an affidavit of a former Frost 
Ridge employee as to recreational act iv it ies on the Property in the 
1960s,  inc luding l ive mus ic ;  the testimony of several neighbors that 
there was a "history of l ive music on the Property," inc luding " l ive ,  
ampl ified bands played every summer weekend during the 1970s and 
I 980s." 

See also: Toys R Us v. Silva. 89 N. Y2d 411, 654 N. YS.2d 100, 676 
N.E.2d 862 ( 1996). 

Variance-Church challenges 

District of Columbia's grant of an 

area variance to synagogue 

Church contends three-prong test for area 
variance is not met by synagogue 

Citat ion:  St. Mary s Episcopal Church , .. District of Columbia Zon 
ing Commission, 2017 WL 6044242 (D.C. 2017) 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ( 12/7 / 17)-This  case addressed the is 
sue of whether sufficient evidence supported a zoning commiss ion's  
findings that a synagogue was affected by "exceptional condition" and 
"practical difficult ies" such that an area variance was warranted. 

The Background/Facts: Hi l l e l  at the George Washington University 
("Hi l l e l " )  is a synagogue that has the mission of providing for the needs 
of Jewish  students at George Washington Univers i ty  ("GW") in  the 
Dis tr ic t  of Columbia .  In  2 0 1 4 ,  H i l l e l  sought to demol i sh  its ex is t ing 
campus rel igious structure and to construct a new four-story bui lding.  
H i l l e l  asserted that it needed such a new faci l i ty to meet inst itutional 
and re l ig ious needs. H i l l e l ' s  proposed new faci l i ty would contain :  a 
basement with a sanctuary, d i n i ng  ha l l ,  and two kosher kitchens 
separating meat and dairy; a second floor dedicated to staff offices, a 
student lounge, gathering space, a study area, and a library; and a third 
and fourth floor to be leased to GW. 

H i l l e l ' s  exis t ing campus structure (to be demol ished and replaced) 
was located on a narrow, rectangular corner lot with a total area of 
4,575 square feet. The lot was located in a "high height and medium 

8 � 20 18  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bulletin January 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 2 

high density residential zone." In order to pursue its proposed facility, 
Hil lel needed, among other things, an area variance and special excep 
tion relief from the Zoning Commission of the District of Columbia 
(the "Zoning Commission") .  The Zoning Commission ultimately ap 
proved Hil le l 's  application for zoning relief. 

Thereafter, St. Mary's Episcopal Church ("St. Mary's") and the West 
End Civic Association ("WECA") (collectively, the "Opponents") chal 
lenged that zoning approval in a petition to the court for review. The 
Opponents contended that Hi l le l  failed to meet the District of Colum 
bia Court of Appeal's "three-prong test for an area variance." 

Under that test, District of Columbia zoning authorities (such as the 
Zoning Commission here) are authorized to grant an area variance 
(such as that sought by H i l l e l  here) if they find that: "( 1 )  there is an 
extraordinary or exceptional cond i t ion affecting the property; (2) 
practical difficult ies w i l l  occur if the zoning regulations are strict ly 
enforced; and (3) the requested relief can be granted without substantial 
detriment to the publ ic good and without substantial ly impairing the 
intent, purpose, and integrity of the zone plan." 

Here, with respect to the first prong of the test, the Zoning Commis 
sion had concluded that Hi l le l  was "affected by an exceptional condi 
t ion ar is ing from a confluence of factors," inc lud ing :  "( 1 )  the size, 
shape, and configuration of its lot; and (2) its demonstrated need to 
improve and expand its facility and maintain its location near the [GW] 
campus where it [could] best serve its primary constituency-students." 
The Zoning Commission had further found that Hi l le l  was "an organi 
zation with unique institutional and rel igious needs that are not related 
to general conditions in  the neighborhood" but "uniquely tied to" GW 
and its 4,500 Jewish students; and the exist ing facil ity could not "ac 
commodate exist ing demand for certain events" and anticipated future 
growth. With respect to the second prong of the test, the Zoning Com 
mission had concluded that Hi l le l  would face "practical difficulties" if 
the zoning regulations were str ict ly enforced. And, with regard the 
third prong of the test, the Zoning Commission concluded that the Op 
ponents had failed to "convincingly show that [H i l l e l ' s  new facil ity] 
[ would] be detrimental to the public good." 

The Opponents strongly disagreed with the Zoning Commiss ion's  
findings and conclus ions .  They argued that H i l l e l  merely preferred a 
new facility as "more cost-effective and beneficial." They maintained 
that the Zoning Commission incorrectly concluded that Hi l le l  met the 
court's three-prong test for an area variance. 

DECISION: Zoning Commission decision affirmed. 

The District of Columbia Court of Appeals affirmed the order of the 
Zoning Commission, concluding that Hi l l e l  did meet the three-prong 
test for an area variance. 

� 2018  Thomson Reuters 9 



January 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 2 Zoning Bul let in 

Address ing  the first  prong of the test-that there must  be an 
exceptional condition affecting the property-the court explained that 
such an exceptional condit ion or "hardship" must be due to "unique 
circumstances pecul iar to [Hi l l e l ' s ]  property and not to the general 
conditions in  the neighborhood." The court concluded that the Zoning 
Commission's findings that there were exceptional conditions here was 
based on "substantial" and "sufficient" evidence, inc luding :  the feasi 
bi l i ty of renovating the exist ing bui ld ing;  testimony from GW students 
"emphasizing the un inv i t ing and fortress-like condition of the ex is t ing 
bui lding"; "increasing numbers of students and others seeking to par 
ticipate in Hi l le l ' s  activit ies and services"; "the exceptional configura 
t ion of the lot"; and "Hi l le l ' s  institutional mission and needs." 

Regarding the second prong of the test-that practical difficult ies 
would occur if the zoning regulations were strictly enforced, the court 
explained that Hi l l e l  had to show: " ( I )  that the specific design it wants 
to bu i ld  const i tutes an ins t i tu t iona l  necessity, not merely the most 
desired of various options, and (2) precise ly how the needed design 
features require the specific variance sought ." Again, the court found 
that there was "sufficient" and "substantial" evidence that Hi t  lei would 
face practical d ifficul t ies i f  zoning regulat ions (namely,  the lot oc 
cupancy and rear yard requirements) were strictly enforced. Given Hi l   
le l ' s  "inst i tut ional need for a s ing le contiguous worship space and d in  
ing space of a certain size," the court found that strict enforcement of 
the zoning regulations "would result in an inefficient and uneconomi 
cal bu i ld ing" that "would not yield enough useable space for the wor 
sh ip ,  d in ing,  and program space required by Hi l l e l . "  

The court a lso found that the th ird prong of the variance test was 
met; the requested relief of the area variance could be granted "without 
substant ia l  detr iment to the pub l i c  good and wi thout  substant ia l ly  
impair ing the intent, purpose, and integrity of the zone plan." The Op 
ponents' argument had focused on al legations that the construction of 
the proposed new facil ity would damage St .  Mary's church bui ld ing .  
But the court explained that the proper standard in  addressing the third 
prong should not be on "whether harm wi l l  result from the construction 
of the facil i ty, but whether harm wi l l ]  result from the structure as bu i l t  
with the variance." Focusing on the latter, the court found no reason to 
disturb the Commiss ion's findings that: " ( I )  the new faci l i ty 's impact 
on l ight and air was less significant than what Hi l le l  was entit led to as a 
matter of right[ ;] and (2) Hi l l e l ' s  revised facility design further reduced 
the impact on l ight and air [on St . Mary's] . . .  " ; and that "provision of 
an easement memorial iz ing [St. Mary's] right of access across [another 
GW] property" adequately addressed St . Mary's concern of loss of ac 
cess across Hi l l e l ' s  rear yard. 

See also: '  Ait-Ghez.a!a v. District of Columbia Board of Zoning 
Adjustment, 148A.3d 121 1  (D.C. 2016) .  

1 0  c  2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bul let in January 25, 2 0 1 8  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 2 

See also: Washington Canoe Club v. District of Columbia Zoning 
Com'n, 889A.2d 995 (D.C. 2005). 

Zoning News from Around the 
Nation 

MASSACHUSETTS 

Governor Charlie Baker recently announced " $ 1 0  mi l l ion  in incen 
tives to encourage c i t ies  and towns to promote development wi th in  
their borders." He also proposed legis lat ion-"An Act to Promote 
Hous ing Choices"-that would make it easier for municipal i t ies to 
change their zoning to promote multifamily developments, reduce their 
parking requirements, and make other changes to smooth the way for 
more hous ing .  These i n i t i a t i ve s  are reportedly modeled on Mas 
sachusetts ' Green Communi t ies  program, which rewards c i t ies  and 
towns for taking cl imate-friendly steps. Specifical ly ,  the Governor's 
b i l l  would al low munic ipa l i t ies to "adopt certain zoning changes by a 
s imple  majority vote rather than the ex i s t i ng  requirement of a two 
thirds vote." The administration also announced " $ 1 . 3  mi l l ion  in  grant 
funding for 37 projects through the Planning Assistance Grant Program, 
which encourages land conservation, reduced energy consumption and 
the housing production." 

Source: Lowell Sun; �vH·w.lmrellsun.com 

PENNSYLVANIA 

Pending in  the state Legislature i s  House B i l l  1620, which "would 
al low wireless carriers to forego local zoning review or approval in  
placing or modifying most faci l i t ies in publ ic rights of way." The b i l l  
would also prohibit munic ipal i t ies "requiring wireless carriers to justify 
instal l ing or modifying wireless facil i t ies, and from charging fees be 
yond $ 1 ,000 for regular faci l i t ies or $ 1 0 0  for ' smal l  ce l l '  antennas." 
Reportedly, several mun ic ipa l i t i e s  have passed reso lut ions opposing 
the bi l l ,  including Doylestown Borough, Plumstead, Upper Southamp 
ton, and Warrington. Proponents of the b i l l  maintain that it is "intended 
as a check against munic ipal i t ies that might pursue fees from wireless 
carriers as a moneymaking venture during the zoning process." The b i l l  
is currently awaiting review in the House Consumer Affairs Committee. 

Source: The Intelligencer; H'Hw.theinte/1.com 

WISC.ONSIN 

Governor Scott Walker has s igned into the law the "Min ing for 

¢ 2018  Thomson Reuters 1 1  



January 25, 20 18  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 2 Zoning Bul let in 

America" b i l l .  The bi l l  is aimed at bringing the min ing industry back to 
Wisconsin. Among other things, the bi l l  includes "a six-month provi 
sion to allow local governments to be able to adjust their zoning laws" 
in response to the b i l l ' s  passage. 

Source: The Lakeland Times; H:wvv.fakefandtimes.com 

1 2  c  2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 



February 1 0 ,  20 18  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 3 

i n  t h i s  i s s u e :  

Proceedings/Jurisdiction-State court finds challenge to constitutionality 
of zoning ordinance is time barred under state law 2 

Use/Interpretation of Zoning Regulations-County Planning Director 
authorizes mining operation under construction permit 5 

Accessory Use-Nursery operators are cited for i l legal " industrial  
manufacturing" of compost in violation of zoning ordinance 8 

Standing-Nonprofit organization challenges rezoning of developers' 
parcels in city 1 0  

Zoning News from Around the Nation 1 1  

:1t}: THOMSON REUTERS® 
Mat #42078485 



February 1 0 ,  2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 3 Zoning Bul let in 

Proceedings/Jurisdiction-State 
court f inds chal lenge to 
constitutionality of zoning 
ordinance is t ime barred under 
state law 

Property owner then brings same chal lenge to 

federal court 

Contributors ------- 

Corey E. Burnham-Howard 

For authorization to photocopy, please contact the West's Copyright Clear 
ance Center at 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, USA (978) 750- 
8400; fax (978) 646-8600 or West's Copyright Services at 61 O Opperman 
Drive, Eagan, MN 55123,  fax (651)  687-7551. Please outline the specific ma 
terial involved, the number of copies you wish to distribute and the purpose or 
format of the use. 

This publication was created to provide you with accurate and authoritative in 
formation concerning the subject matter covered; however, this publication 
was not necessarily prepared by persons licensed to practice law in a particu 
lar jurisdiction. The publisher is not engaged in rendering legal or other profes 
sional advice and this publ ication is not a substitute for the advice of an 
attorney. If you require legal or other expert advice, you should seek the ser 
vices of a competent attorney or other professional. 

Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson Reuters, 61 O Op 
perman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul ,  MN 55164-0526. For subscription 
information: call (800) 229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing, 
620 Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul ,  MN 55164-9753. 

POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bul let in ,  61 O Opperman 
Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. 

(/}): THOMSON REUTERS® 
•::::;�··· 

6 1 0  Opperman Drive 
P.O. Box 64526 

St. Paul , MN 55164-0526 

1 -800-229-2084 

email :  west.customerservice@thomsonreuters.com 
ISSN 0514-7905 

, 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 
All Rights Reserved 

Quinlan TM is a Thomson Reuters brand 

2 e 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bul let in February 1 0 ,  2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 3 

Citat ion :  May v. Morgan County Georgia, 2017 WL 6521296 ( II th Cir. 

2017) 

The Eleventh Circuit has jurisdiction over Alabama. Florida, and 
Georgia. 

ELEVENTH CIRCUIT (GEORGIA) ( 1 2 / 2 1  / 17)-This  case addressed 
the i ssue of whether the const i tu t iona l i ty of a zon ing ordinance that i s  
challenged in  state court can later be challenged in federal court. 

The Background/Facts: Chris t ine May ("May") purchased lakefront 
property i n  Morgan County,  Georgia ( the  "Coun ty" )  on wh i ch  she 
constructed a vacation home. In order to a l lay the cost of construction, 
May planned to (and did) use the home for short-term vacation rentals. At 
the t ime, the County's zoning ordinance only al lowed uses that were l isted 
as "permitted" or "condit ional ." Short-term rental of single family dwell 
ings (such as May's) were not l isted as "permitted" or "condi t ional ." 

In 20 I 0, the County adopted Regulation 1 5 . 3 5 .  That regulation expl ic i t ly 
banned rentals of s ingle family dwel l ings for Jess than 30 consecutive days 
in the zoning distr ict in which May's property was located. 

May cont inued to rent her property on a short-term bas i s .  In August 
2 0 1 1 ,  the County issued to May a cr iminal  c i tat ion for v io lat ing Regula 
t ion 1 5 . 3 5 .  

In Apri l  20 1 2 ,  May filed a lawsuit in Georgia state court. In her lawsui t ,  
she argued that she had a "grandfathered" right under the County zoning 
ordinances to con t i nue  offering short-term rentals on her property. She 
also argued that appl icat ion of Regulat ion 1 5 . 3 5  to her property was un 
cons t i tu t iona l  under the due process and equal protection clauses of the 
Uni ted States and Georgia Const i tu t ions ,  and the privi leges and immun i   
t ies clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Const i tu t ion .  

Ul t imate ly ,  the state trial court concluded that May's act ion was barred 
because: ( I )  she had failed to exhaust her adminis trat ive remedies by not 
seeking a rezoning and condi t ional  use permit from the County before fi l  
ing su i t ;  and (2) Georgia Code § 5-3-20(a) barred May ' s  c l a ims  because 
she fa i led to chal lenge the adoption of Regulat ion 1 5 . 3 5  (on i ts face, or as 
appl ied to her property) wi th in  30 days of i ts  passage. 

May appealed. The Georgia Court of Appeals denied her appl icat ion for 
a discret ionary appeal .  May again appealed, and the Supreme Court or 

Georgia also denied review. 

May then attempted an administrat ive remedy. She fi led an application 
for rezoning w i th  the County,  wh ich  wou ld  a l low her property to he 
rezoned for short-term rentals .  She a l so asked the County to amend the 
zoning ordinance to a l low short-term rentals by property owners who 
rented before enactment of Regulation 15 .35 .  She also requested that the 
County declare her r ight to cont inue offering short-term rentals on her 
property. The County denied her request and her app l ications. 

In May 2 0 1 5 ,  May fi led a lawsuit against the County in  federal district 
court. In that action, she again argued that she had a grandfathered right to 

g 2018  Thomson Reuters 3 



February 1 0 ,  2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 3 Zoning Bul let in 

offer short-term rentals on her property. She brought a cla im against the 
County under federal statute (42 U .S .C .A .  §  1 9 8 3 ) ,  contending that 
Regulat ion 1 5 . 3 5  violated her "grandfathered constitutional rights." She 
also chal lenged the County's denia l  of her applications for rezoning or 
amendment and her request for a declaration of rights. 

Finding there were no material issues of fact in  dispute, and deciding 
the matter on the law alone, the district court granted summary judgment 
i n  favor of the County on May's request for a declaration that she had a 
grandfathered right to rent her property. The district court found that issue 
had already been l i t igated and decided in  May's August  2 0 1 1  c r im ina l  
c i ta t ion case. The dis tr ict  court also decl ined to exercise supplemental 
jur i sd ic t ion over May's c la ims related to the County's denial of her ap 
pl icat ion for rezoning and amendment and her request for a declaration 
( leaving those only to he challenged in state court). Final ly , as to May's 
§ 1 983  c la ims that the County's Regulation 1 5 . 3 5  violated her "grandfa 
thered const i tut ional rights," the district court determined that the Rooker 

Feldman doctrine barred its review of May's § 1 983  cla ims .  

The Rooker-Feldman doctrine provides that federal distr ict  courts and 
courts of appeal do not have jur isdict ion to review state court decis ions. 
The doctrine "applies both to federal claims raised in the state court and to 
those ' inextricably intertwined' with the state court's judgment." It applies 
as long as the party bringing the c la ims had a "reasonable opportunity" to 
raise the federal c la ims in state proceedings. 

May appealed. She argued that the Rooker-Feldman doctrine d id not 
apply here because her state court case was an "as app l ied" chal lenge to 
Regulation 1 5 . 3 5 ,  whi le the federal challenge she was mak ing differed i n  
that in  federal court she was now cla im ing that the enactment of Regula 
t ion I  5 .35 could not l im i t  her "constitut iona l  grandfathered right." 

DECISION: Judgment of District Court for the Middle District of 
Georgia affirmed. 

The Un i ted States Court of Appeals, E leventh C i r cu i t ,  he ld that the 
Rooker-Feldman doctrine barred May 's § 1983 c la im and her declaratory 
judgment request "because the crux of [her c la im j  was addressed in  the 
f irst [state] c i v i l  case." The court noted that "[e lven i f  h e r §  1 9 8 3  c la im 
that she ha[d] a 'vested const i tut ional r ight to continue renting [her prop 
erty] on a short-term bas is , '  [was ]  somehow dist inct from an as appl ied 
challenge to the const i tut ional i ty of the Regulation 1 5 . 3 5  bar against her 
enjoyment of that right ,  that c la im [  was] inextricab ly intertw ined w ith her 
cla ims from her first c iv i l  case. And so [was] her request for a declaratory 
judgment ." The court explained that hath her § 1983 c la im and her claim 
for declaratory re l ief  were "based on her asser t ion that she ha [d ]  a  
'grandfathered r ight '  to rent her property on a short]- Jterm bas is ."  Thus ,  
both c la ims would require finding that her cla im of a "vested const i tu t iona l  
r ight" was ·not t ime barred under Georgia law for her failure to cha l lenge 
Regulat ion 1 5 . 3 5  with in  30 days of its passage. In other words , i t  would 
requ ire a find ing in  federal d is tr ic t  court "on the same c l a ims  that she 

4 <e 2018  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bul let in February 1 0 ,  20 18  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 3 

brought, and lost, in state court." "So she [was] complaining of the same 
injury in both cases, and [was] impl ic i t ly  seeking a rejection of the state 
court's judgment that [Georgia Code § 5-3-20(a)] barred her request for 
relief." Thus, although not "bi l l [ed]" as an "appeal of the state court judg 
ment," her federal court c la ims were "in substance just that," found the 
court .  The court concluded that Rooker-Feldman therefore barred federal 
review of May's cla ims because al l  of her c la ims here were "inextricably 
intertwined" with those from the first state c iv i l  case. 

See also:  District of Columbia Court of Appeals v. Feldman, 460 U.S. 
462, I 03 S. Ct. 1303, 75 L. Ed. 2d 206 ( l 983 ). 

See also: Nicholson v. Shafe, 558 FJd 1266, 89 U.S.PQ.2cl 19J I  (  Jlth 
ci: 2009). 

See also:  Casale v. Tiffman, 558 F3d 1258 ( Jlth Cir: 2009). 

Case Note: 

May had alternativelv argued that the court should adopt an exception to Rooker 

Feldman, andfind that it did 1101 applv because the state court in the first civil 

case lacked subject matter jurisdiction ( i .e . ,  the authority to hear the specific 

subject matter of May's case). The court cone/ udecl that even if it we re to adopt 

such an exception, it would not apply here because the court in May's first civil 

case had subject matter jurisdiction to determine that the 30-clay store law time 

bar (Georgia Code§ 5-3-20(a)) applied to May's claims. 

Use/Interpretation of Zoning 
Regulations-County P lanning 
Director authorizes min ing  
operation under construction 
permit 

County Board reverses, maintain ing that a min ing 

permit is instead required 

Citation: Croefl Redi-Mix. Inc. v. Pennington County Board of Commis 
sioners, 2017SD87 ,  20!7WL638/344(S .D.  2017) 

SOUTH DAKOTA ( 1 2 / 1 3 / 1 7  )-This  case addressed the  i s s u e  or 
whether,  under a county ordinance.  a m i n i n g  operat ion was properly 
permitted under a construction permit .  The case also addressed the issue or 
whether the mining operation was exempt from permit requirements as a 
legal nonconforming use. 

g 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 5 



February 1 0 ,  20 18  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 3 Zoning Bul let in 

The Background/Facts: Since the 1970s, Perli Quarry (the "Quarry") 
had been in operation in Pennington County (the "County"). The Quarry 
was a min ing operation that extracted sand, gravel, and construct ion 
aggregate. At the t ime the Quarry began operating, the County had not yet 
adopted zoning ordinances. Zoning ordinances were eventually adopted 
and amended and updated, including in 2001 and 20 10 .  Under those ordi 
nances, the Quarry was designed an "A-1 General Agriculture District," 
which allowed, among others, the following relevant uses: "[t]emporary 
quarries"; "the extraction of sand, gravel, or minerals ," provided that a 
Construct ion Permit i s  obtained in  accordance with [the zoning ordi 
nances]; and "[m] in ing provided a Construction Permit is obtained in ac 
cordance with [the zoning ordinances] ." The provision of a construction 
permit was governed b y §  507(A) of the County zoning ordinance. Section 
507(8) also permitted min ing as authorized by a min ing permit. 

In 20 I 5, Croell Redi-Mix Inc. ("Croell") acquired the Quarry. Croell 
sought to "cont inue and expand min ing  operations" at the Quarry. The 
County P lann ing Department advised Croell to obtain a construct ion 
permit pursuant to § 507(A) of the County zoning ordinance. Croell ap 
p l ied  for a cons t ruc t ion  permi t  to con t i n ue  and expand i t s  m i n i n g  
operation. The County P lann ing Commiss ion approved the appl icat ion 
and the Planning Director issued the construction permit. 

Subsequently, area residents appealed the approval of the construction 
permit to the County Board of Commissioners (the "Board"). The County 
Board of Commiss ioners  (the "Board") reversed the approval of the 
construction permit . 

Croell then appealed the Board's reversal to circui t  court . The c i rcu i t  
court found that the Board's  dec i s ion  to reverse the i s suance of the 
construction permit was "arbitrary" because it was based on "unfounded" 
assertions of area residents. 

The Board appealed. On appeal, the Board argued that Croell 's proposed 
use of the Quarry in  the A- I General Agriculture D istrict could not be au 
thorized under a construct ion permit .  The Board argued that ,  under the 
pla in language of the zoning ordinance , a construction permit could not he 
issued for a quarry of the scope and duration intended by Croel l .  The Board 
argued that the min ing of such a scope as proposed cou ld only he permit 
ted i f  a  min ing permit was obtained. 

Again, § 507(A) of the County zoning ordinance allowed m i n ing under 
a construction permit, subject to "any other" "more restrictive" prov ision 
that took precedent. Section 507(8) was a more restrict ive provis ion ,  
requir ing a m in i ng  permit for extract ion of any mineral or substance 
exceeding I 00 cub ic yards. Croell extracted more than I 00 cubic yards . 

Croell responded by noting the "historical interpretation , app l ica t ion .  
and implementat ion of the [County zoning ordinance] by staff and lega l 
counse l ," which "his tor ica l ly  and cons i s tent ly" interpreted the zon ing 
ordinance to allow mining such as Croell 's with only a construction permit 
and w i thout obtaining a min ing permit. Croell argued that historica l inter- 

6 c: 2018  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bul let in February 1 0 ,  2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 3 

pretation was enti t led to deference here. Croell a lso contended that the 
min ing-permit  requirement of the zoning ordinance d id not apply to the 
Quarry s ince i t  had been in operation prior to adoption of the zoning 
ordinance and was thus a legal nonconforming use. 

DECISION: Judgment of circuit court reversed. 

The Supreme Court of South Dakota rejected Croell 's arguments and 
agreed with the Board. The court found that under the pla in language of 
the zoning ordinance(§ 507(B)), Croell 's intended use of the land required 
a mining permit. Thus, the court concluded that the Board had properly re 
versed the Planning Director 's i s suance of the construct ion permit for 
Croell 's min ing operation use at the Quarry. 

In so concluding, the court explained that since Croell extracted more 
than 100  cubic yards, "[ujndcr the clear language o f §  507(B) ,  Croel l ' s  
intended use could not he authorized under a construction permit; a min  
i ng  permi t  was requ i red ."  Therefore, the court he ld  tha t  the Board 
"properly declined to issue a construction permit for the purpose of doing 
that which [ was l prohibited under§  507(B ) ,  and the circuit court erred by 
reversing the Board's decis ion." 

Rejecting Croel l 's argument that the Planning Commiss ion and Plan 
ning Director's "historical interpretation" of the zoning ordinance-allow 
ing min ing  with a construct ion permit-should he given deference, the 
court sa id that when the meaning of an ordinance i s  "unambiguous"-as 
the court found it was here-"the contrary interpretation of those admin is   
tering the ordinance is not ent i t led to deference." 

Regarding Croe l l ' s  legal nonconforming use argument ,  the appellate 
court concluded that i t  was "not relevant ." Croell 's construc t ion perm it ap 
pl ication d id not s imply seek to cont inue a nonconforming use ,  hut sought 
to expand its operation to convert addit ional acres or land to use as a quarry 
that had not previously been used as a quarry. Thus ,  a min ing permit was 
required , concluded the court . 

See also :  Wegner Auto Co., In c : v.  Ballard. 353 N. W2d 57 (S.D. 1984). 

Case Note: 

On appeal. Croell had also challenged the standing (i.e . .  legal right to appeal) of 

the area residents to appeal the issuance of the construction permit. The court 

found that, under the zoning ordinance. anvone "affected" by "any action taken 

by the Planning Director in administering . . .  Section 507(A) f of the County ion 

ing ordinance, which governs construction permits.]" had standing to appeal to 

the.Board. Here, the court found that the residents that had appealed to the Board 

irere "affected" by the Planning Director's decision as they had claimed the min 

ing operations affected them in the following 1rnys: negatively impacted their 

enjoyment of their properties; contaminated local wells; ejected large amounts of 

dust onto their properties; decreased traffic safety; and reduced local tourism. 

g 2018  Thomson Reuters 7 



February 1 0 ,  2018 I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 3 Zoning Bul let in 

Accessory Use-Nursery 
operators are cited for i l legal  
" industr ial  manufacturing" of 
compost in violation of zoning 
ordinance 

Nursery operators claim composting was not 

"manufactured," and, in any case, was an authorized 

accessory use of their property 

8 � 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 

I  

I  

I  

I  

I  

I  

I  

I  

I  

I  
I  
I  

Citat ion :  State ex rel. Tom, of Tiverton v. Pe!fetier, 2017 WL 6395807 
(R.l. 2017) 

RHODE ISLAND ( 12 / 15 / 17 )-Thi s  case addressed the issue of whether 
compost ing act iv i t ies  on resident ia l  property amounted to "manufactur 
ing" of compost on residential property, which was prohibited under the 
local zoning ordinance. The case also addressed the issue of whether the 
manufacture of compost on resident ia l  property was permitted as an "ac 
cessory use," despite the local ordinance prohibit ing such manufacturing 
act iv i t ies in a res ident ia l  zoning distr ict .  

The Background/Facts: James and Melissa Pellet ier (the "Pellet iers") 
owned a 30-acre property (the "Property") in  a  residential zoning distr ict 
i n  the Town of Tiverton (the "Town"). In their R-80 zoning distr ic t ,  ra is ing 
crops commercia l ly .  inc luding an associated greenhouse or nursery. was a 
permitted use. The Pel let iers operated a nursery on their Property. 

In March 2009. the Pel le t iers were served wi th  a  summons and com 
p l a i n t  charg ing them w i t h  v i o l a t i n g  the Town's zon ing  ord inance by 
manufac tur ing  compos t  on t h e  Property .  Unde r  the Town's  zon ing  
ordinance, " industr ia l  manufacturing, storing. processing, and fabricating 
act iv i t ies" were prohibi ted uses in an R-80 zone. Arter a tr ia l ,  the Pelletiers 
were found l iable for manufacturing compost i n  an R-80 zone in v io lat ion 
of the zoning ordinance. 

The Pelletiers appealed. They argued that the evidence did not es tabl ish 
that they "manufactured" compost on their Property. The Pelletiers admit 
ted that mater ia ls (such as grass c l ippings ,  yard waste , and horse manure) 
were shipped from off-site to the Property for the purpose of composting. 
Witnesses for the Town had tes t ified to ,  among other th ings ,  observing 
large p i l e s  of compost and the m i x i ng  of material  w i th  indus t r ia l  
equipment .  However, the Pel letiers contended that the i r  composting ac 
t i ons  could not be categorized as " i ndus tr ia l ly manufacturing" because 
"once the material [ was] mixed together, 'nature takes over' and compos t  
develops natural ly ." They also argued that the compost ing ac t iv i t ies d id 



Zoning Bul letin February 1 0 ,  2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 3 

not amount to "industr ial manufacturing" because the compost was not be 
ing packaged and sold as a product off-site. Alternatively, the Pelletiers 
contended that the processing of compost on their Property was a permit 
ted accessory use because compost was used in the operation of a nursery, 
which was a permitted use in the R-80 zone. 

DECISION: Judgment of superior court affirmed. 

The Supreme Court of Rhode Island held that the Pelletiers' conviction 
of violat ing the Town zoning ordinance by manufacturing compost on res 
idential property was supported by sufficient evidence. Although the zon 
ing ordinance did not define "manufacturing," the court noted that it has 
been defined as "the production of articles for use from raw or prepared 
mater ia ls  by g iv ing  the mater ia ls  new forms, qua l i t ies ,  properties or 
combination whether by hand labor or machines." The court found that the 
evidence establ ished that the Pel let iers :  procured truckloads of waste 
mater ia l s  from off-site to be transported to the i r  Property; ac t ive ly  
combined those waste mater ia ls w i th  heavy industr ia l  equ ipment ;  and 
produced large quanti t ies of finished compost that was ult imately used off 
s i te through the Pel let iers '  landscaping bus iness .  The court emphasized 
that i t  found that the use of "heavy, no ise-emi t t ing industr ia l  equipment 
coupled with del ivery of truckloads of organic material . . .  on a da i ly  
basis," establ ished the elements of "manufacturing" and "processing" that 
set the Pel let iers compost ing ac t iv i t i e s  apart from the "average home 
owner who engages in  composting." 

In so hold ing ,  the court rejected the Pcl let iers' arguments that the ir  
c o m p o s t i n g  a c t i v i t i e s  c o u l d  not  be ca t egor i zed  as " i n d u s t r i a l  
manufactur ing ." The court sa id that ,  whether or not the Pel let iers were 
se l l ing their compost for profit was " immateria l ." The court noted that the 
Town zon ing ordinance en t i t l ed  " Indus t r ia l  uses" was devoid of any 
requirement that manufactured products be "packaged, shipped, and sold 
for profit." Moreover, the court found that the plain meanings of "manufac 
turing" and " industria l" did "not necessari ly involve retail activity." 

The court also rejected the Pel let iers' argument that the processing of 
compost on their Property was a permitted accessory use because compost 
was used in the nursery, which was a permitted use in the R-80 zone. The 
Town zoning ordinance defined accessory use as a use of land or bui ld ing 
"customari ly incidental and subordinate to the principal use or the land or 
bui ld ing . . . .  "  The court acknowledged that the use or compost in con 
nection with a nursery use was allowed as an accessory use. However, the 
court dist inguished such an accessory use of compost from "the [ industr ia l ]  
manufacturing, storing, and processing of compost" performed on a "large 
scale" by the Pelletiers. The " industrial manufacturing" of compost by the 
Pellet iers, found the court, was not allowed even as an accessory use since 
the zon ing  ord inance express ly  proh ib i ted  "manu fac tur ing ,  s tor ing ,  
processing, and fabricating act ivi t ies" in an R-80 zone. Accordingly, the 
court held that manufacturing compost on the Pelletiers' Property was not 
a permitted accessory use. 

g 2018  Thomson Reuters 9 



February 1 0 ,  20 18  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 3 Zoning Bul let in 

Standing-Nonprofit organization 
chal lenges rezoning of 
developers' parcels in city 

Developer and city argue that nonprofit fai led to 

prove it would suffer special damages from rezoning 

and therefore lacks standing to br ing the chal lenge 

Citat ion :  Cherry Community Organization v. City of Charlotte, 20 17  
WL 5580339 (NC Ct. App. 2017) 

NORTH CAROLINA ( 1 1 / 2 1 / 1 7 ) - T h i s  case addressed the i s sue of 
whether a nonprofit organization showed that it would suffer special dam 
ages from a proposed rezoning such that i t  had standing ( i . e . ,  the legal 
r ight) to seek declaratory judgment against the city and a developer chal   
lenging the rezoning. 

The Background/Facts: Midtown Area Partners I I ,  LLC ("MAP'') 
owned four parcels in  and around the Cherry Communi ty C'Cherry") i n  
the City of Charlot te (the "Ci ty") .  Cherry was an h i s tor ica l ly  African 
American neighborhood located in the Midtown Morehead Cherry District 
of the City. In August 20 14 ,  MAP submitted an appl ica t ion to the City to 
rezone the four parcels from general-use distr icts to mixed development 
distr icts in furtherance of its plans to construct a mixed-use development. 

The Cherry Community Organization ("CCO") was a nonprofit organi 
zation that sought to "protect the residential character, safety, and stabi l i ty 
of, as wel l  as the affordable hous ing w i t h i n  [Cherry] ."  CCO opposed 
MAP's  rezoning app l ica t ion .  CCO owned real property immed ia te ly  
adjacent to and/or in  close proximi ty to MAP's parcels. CCO complained 
that  i t  would suffer from "spec ia l  damages" from the rezoning " i n  the 
form of increased noise, traffic and parking, decreased v i s ib i l i ty  due to the 
he ight  of the proposed project, d im i nu t i on  i n  the peaceful res iden [ t i a l J  
character of the Cherry neighborhood ,  and a reduct ion in  the va lue or 
[CCO 's ]  real property." 

The Ci ty Counc i l  u l t imate ly  approved MAP 's rezoning appl icat ions .  
CCO petit ioned the superior court, seeking declaratory judgment against 
the City and MAP. F ind ing there were no material issues of fact in dispute .  
and deciding the matter on the law alone, the trial court granted summary 
j u d g m e n t  i n  favor of  the City and MAP, and d i sm i s sed  the case w i t h  
prejudice .  

CCO appealed. As a threshold matter, the City and MAP asserted that 
CCO lacked standing ( i . e . ,  the legal right) to br ing the declaratory judg  
ment action. 

DECISION: Judgment of superior court affirmed as modified. 

1 0  c  2018  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bul let in February 1 0 ,  2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 3 

The Court of Appeals of North Carolina agreed with the City and MAP, 
concluding that CCO lacked standing to bring the declaratory judgment 
action against the City and MAP. 

In so concluding, the court explained that a party only has standing to 
challenge a zoning ordinance in an action for declaratory judgment when 
it "has a specific personal and legal interest in the subject matter affected 
by the zoning ord inance and . . .  i s  d irect ly and adversely affected 
thereby." The court noted that although owning property immediately 
adjacent to or within close proximity to the subject property (as CCO did 
here with regard to the parcels MAP sought to rezone) d id "bear some 
weight on the issue of whether the compla in ing party ha[d] suffered or 
[ would] suffer special damages dist inct from those damages to the public 
at large," that was not "in and of itself sufficient to plead special damages." 

Here, examining the evidence submitted by CCO, the court found i t  was 
" insuffic ient  to show that CCO ha[d]  or [would]  suffer any i nd iv idua l  
harm as a result of the rezoning such that CCO" could prove standing and 
survive the motion for summary judgment that had been brought by the 
C i ty  and MAP. Although CCO had al leged specia l  damages, the court 
found that there was no "actual proof' of special damages. The court found 
that "CCO's forecast of evidence of special damages consist ]  ed] of noth 
ing more than conclusory, unsupported al legat ions that certain damages 
[would] ensue . . . .  "  

Having found that CCO failed to meet its burden of production of ev i   
dence that i t  would suffer special damages d i s t i nc t  from the rest of the 
commun i ty  because of MAP's  rezoning, the court concluded that CCO 
failed to establ ish that i t  had standing to mainta in i t s  action for declaratory 
judgment. Accordingly, the court did not reach CCO's remain ing conten 
t ions and the merits of cco·s appeal . 

See also: Cherry v. Wies11e1; 781 S.E.2d 871 (NC. Ct. App. 2016), review 
denied, 369 NC. 33, 792 S.E.2d 779 (2016). 

Zoning News from Around the 
Nation 

MASSACHUSETTS 

The Woburn City Counci l  recently voted to modify local regulations to 
extend to 12-months the immuni ty period that shields bui lders from hav 
i ng  to modify cons t ruc t ion  p l an s  to reflect recent ly adopted zon ing  
ordinances. Previously. the exception was for a s ix-month period of t ime, 
which conflicted with a superseding state law. 

Source: Daily Times Chronicle; http://homenewshere.com 

OHIO 

The Newark City Counci l  has passed a zoning ordinance al lowing for 

� 20 18  Thomson Reuters I I 



February 1 0 ,  2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 3 Zoning Bul let in 

medical marijuana businesses in the city. The new ordinance appl ies to 
medical  marijuana cul t ivators ,  processors, and dispensaries .  Under the 
ordinance, any dispensary must be approved by the Newark Board of Zon 
ing Appeals .  The ordinance a l so  l im i t s  the locat ion of d ispensar ies by 
restricting them to "medium intensity business districts" and from wi th in 
1 ,000 feet of a school, church, publ ic library, publ ic playground or publ ic 
park. A variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals could reduce that 
distance to 750 feet away from the restricted areas. The location of medi 
cal marijuana cul t ivators and processors would be I i  mited to industr ia l  
districts .  The businesses are also required to obtain a l icense from the City 
and pay an annual $500 fee. 

Source: Newark Advocate; 1-vw1v.11e1varkadvocate.com 

WISCONSIN 

In late November, Governor Scott Walker signed into law the "Home 
owners' B i l l  of Rights ." The new legis lat ion, consists or two b i l l s :  One b i l l  
"a l lows property owners to bu i ld  on and sel l lots of 'substandard' s ize i f  
they were legal when created." That b i l l  also "prohibi ts local governments 
from merging adjacent lots that share the same owner without the owner's 
permission and makes i t  easier for property owners to get condit ional-use 
permi ts  and variances,  ma in ta in  nonconforming structures, and dredge 
pr ivate ponds ." The second b i l l  "a l lows homeowners to appeal assess 
ments when a homeowner refuses to let the assessor ins ide the house, and 
to hang the American flag even i f  condominium or homeowner associat ion 
rules would prohibit i t . "  

Source: The Heartland lnstitute: wH·11·.heartla11d.org 

1 2  ¢  2018  Thomson Reuters 


	03-06-18 Agenda
	02-06-18 Draft Minutes
	Item I.A.1 CUP 2-18 Boys and Girls Club
	Item I.A.2 Variance Boys and Girls Club
	Item I.A.3 Res 1-18 Master Plan Amendment
	Item I.B.1 Tower Hills FP 4-18
	Item I.B.2 Initiation of IC district change
	Item I.B.3 elections
	Zoning Bulletin - 01-25-18
	Zoning Bulletin - 02-10-18

